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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors of AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited have pleasure in presenting
their annual report and the audited financial information for the year ended 31 December 2016 prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS), the provisions of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and the Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance (HKICO).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of the Company is underwriting insuranee business.

During the year, the Company has carried on employee compensation, motor vehicle and liability insurance
: busmess relatmg to liabilities or risks in respect of which persons are requ1red by law to be insured.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company, prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong, for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the statement of comprehensive income on page

15 of the financial statements.

| During the yeat, dividends of US$0.15 per ordinary share, totalling US$25,793,000 (2015: US$1.95 per
 ordinary share, totalling US$343,183,136) were paid to the ordinary shareholder.

- SHARE CAPITAL

Detaﬂs of movements in the Company s share capital durmg the year are set out in note 19 to the ﬁnanc1a1

' statements

" RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in the statement of changes in equity.

PLAN T AND EQUIPMENT

Deta1ls of the movements in plant and equipment of the Company during the year are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Detalls of the Companys subsidiaries and associates as at 31 December 2016 are set out in notes 14 and 15
~ respectively to the financial statements. :



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has reinsurance arrangements with various reputable reinsurers. They are summarlsed by line

of busmess as follows
Line of business

Individual business

Individual business (aécepted)
Critical illness

Disability Income

Waiver of Premium
Individual business - medical

" Lifeand Personal Accident

Group life

Retention

US$125,000 for policies effective
before 1 September 2008
US$350,000 for policies effective
on or after 1 September 2008
1% share of guaranteed death benefit less
guaranteed surrender value less other
reinsurance payable under any other treaty
for in-force policies as at 31 Dec 2014
US$70,000
50% Share
1% share of guaranteed death benefit
less guaranteed surrender value less other
reinsurance payable under any other treaty
for in-force policies as at 31 Dec 2012
US$34,000
1% share
1% of surrender value in death benefit
100% share
US$125,000 for policies effective
before 1 September 2008
US$250,000 for policies effective
on or after 1 September 2008
Retain the same proportion of risk
as basic life benefit

- US$37,500

25% share up to HK$300,000 per life
26.2% share of all insurance rlsks
Effective Time

- 1983 HK$5,000
1Jan 1986 -  HKS$8,000
1 Jan 1987 HK$10,000
1 Jan 1989 HK$16,000
1 Mar 1996 HK$40,000
US$2,500 per month
US$3,750 per annum

1% of insurance

- 25% of insurance

25% of insurance

EUR 35,000,000

Nil (for policies accepted)

70% Sum Insured to US$70,000 for death

70% Sum Insured to US$30,000 for critical
Hlness

“50% of first MOP 2,800,000 Sum Insured

for death

Type of treaty

Surplus
Quota share

Surplus
Quota share
Quota share

Surplus

- Quota share

Quota share
Quota share
Surplus

Surplus

Surplus

Quota share

Modified Coinsurance .
Surplus

Surplus

Surplus

Quota share

Quota share

Quota share
Catastrophe excess of
loss

Quota share

Quota share

Surplus



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

"REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS - continued
Line of business - | Retention » ' ‘ Type of treaty

General Insurance -
Combined Liability HK$8 million Excess of loss
a) Motor own damage, third party '
property damage and third party
bodily injury
b) Employee’s compensation and
employer’s liability
" ¢) Public liability/engineering

liability , B ,
~ Marine R US$12 million for Cargo Surplus
, : o - US$3 million for Marine hull,
Builders risks, Marine liabilities,
Pleasure craft hull, and - _
Pleasure craft third party liability ;
A , v US$350,000 Excess of loss
Property ‘ : HK$14 million Excess of loss
: HK$6.3 million = ‘ Excess of loss
HK$110 million , Surplus
Personal Accident : HK$2.9 million Excess of loss
General Insurance Business 0% share for Travel, Home Contents, Quota share
(Travel, Home Contents, Business Insurance, Domestic Helper and
Business Insurance, . Commercial Vehicle
Domestic Helper, Commercial 60% share for Private Motor Car

- Vehicle and Private Motor Car)



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY ( BERMUDA) LIMITED
“DIRECTORS

Thé difectors of fhe Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:
S.E. Harrison | | |

‘P.D. Sullivan
A M.B. Breitburd

AM.W.Chui ' , (resigned on 1 March 2017).

B.M. Claveranne (resigned on 22 September 2016)
E.M.F.Bouas-Laurent : (appointed on 22 September 2016)
C. Feathers - } (appointed on 1 March 2017) '
K.W. Goertzen (alternate to C.Feathers) (appointed on 1 March 2017)

In accordance with Bye-Law 74 of the Company's Bye-Laws, all remaining directors retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

CONTROLLERS

The controllers of the Company, within the meaning of Section 9(1) of the Hong Kong Insurance Companies
Ordmance durmg the year and up to the date of this report were:

AXA Assurances IARD Mutuelle
AXA SA (“AXA”)
- AXA ASIA SAS
~ AXA China Region Limited :
‘H. de Castries ~ (ceased to be a Controller on 1 September 2016)

~ J-L.C.M. Laurent 1051

‘S.E. Harrison ' :
T.Buberl (became a Controller on 1 September 2016)
X.J.C. Lestrade - ~ (became a Controller on 1 June 2016)

- DIRECTORS' AND CONTROLLERS' INTERESTS

‘No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding companies or any of its
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a controller of the Company had a material
_ interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

No properties were transferred, loans advanced to or obligations assumed by or for a director or a
- controller of the Company, his nominees or associates (within the meaning of section 9 of the Insurance .
Companies Ordinance) during the year. Amount paid or payable to the directors or controllers of the
Company for the year are shown in notes 9 and 32 to the ﬁnan01al statements.

b_ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

During the year, certain directors and the controllers of the Company who were dlrectors and controllers
during the year held options to subscribe for shares at fixed prices in AXA, the ultimate holding company
of the Company, granted under the AXA Share Option Scheme. Mr. T. Buberl, Mr. J-L.C.M. Laurent
Josi, Mr. S.E. Harrison and Mr. B.M. Claveranne partially exercised their options under the AXA Share
Option Scheme to subscribe for AXA shares.



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

During the year, certain directors and the controllers of the Company who were directors and controllers
during the year held performance shares granted under the Performance Share Plan of AXA. Under this
Plan, AXA grants to certain executives performance shares to acquire AXA shares at the end of the
acquisition period without any exercise price. Mr. J-L.C.M. Laurent Josi, Mr. E.M.F. Bouas-Laurent,
Ms. A.M.B. Breitburd, Mr. S.E. Harrison, Mr. X.J.C. Lestrade and Mr. B.M. Claveranne acquired AXA
shares under this Plan.

During the year, certain directors and controllers of the Company who were directors and controllers
during the year were granted certain AXA Miles under the AXA Miles Program. These AXA Miles were
granted to them in their capacity as employees of the AXA Group. Under this Program, each AXA Mile
gives these directors and controllers the right to acquire an AXA share at the end of the acquisition period
without any exercise price. Mr. J-L.C.M. Laurent Josi, Mr. E.M.F. Bouas-Laurent, Ms. A.M.B.
Breitburd, Mr. S.E. Harrison, Ms. A.M.W. Chui, Mr. X.J.C. Lestrade and Mr. B.M. Claveranne acquired
AXA shares under this Program.

During the year, Mr. H. de Castries, Mr. T. Buberl, Mr. E.M.F. Bouas-Laurent, Ms. A.M.B. Breitburd,
Ms. AAM.W. Chui, Mr. S.E. Harrison, Mr. X.J.C. Lestrade and Mr. B.M. Claveranne participated in the
AXA Group’s Employee Shareplan. Under this Shareplan, AXA offers employees of the AXA Group
opportunity to invest and hold units in funds in this Shareplan which in turn hold AXA shares. This
Shareplan enables such employees to purchase AXA shares indirectly through the funds at fixed
discounts to AXA share prices.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its holding
companies or any of its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors and

controllers of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

A resolution will be submitted to the shareholder of the Company to re-appoint Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company.

S.E.Hfaﬁsgn’ ‘ M.C. Lam
DIRECTOR ASSISTANT SECRETARY
24 APR 2017 24 APR 2017



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

_What we have audited

‘The financial statements of AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (the
: “Company ) standing alone set out on pages 15 to 103, which comprise: '

the balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to ‘the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

- Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company standing alone as at 31 December 2016, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

- issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

- Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by

~ ‘the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements of the Company Standing Alone section of
our report. ' '

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprlate to provide a basis

~ for our opinion.

Independence

- We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Ccde of Ethics for
- Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical respon31b1ht1es in

accordance with the Code.



'INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
- AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED - continued
(1ncorporated in Bermuda with hrmted liability)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

- information included in the directors’ report on pages 1 to 5 and financial information prepared under

the Insurance Companies Ordinance on pages 104 to 123, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the ﬁnan01a1 statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

vInvconnec'tion with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

- If; based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
oother information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements of the Company Standing Alone

- The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and

using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

. process.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF
AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED - continued
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Audltor S Respons1b111t1es for the Audit of the Financial Statements of the Company Standing
‘ Alone

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
- responsibility towards or accept liability to any- other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance; but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in

~~accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
* could reasonably be expected to 1nﬂuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basm of these
ﬁnanc1a1 statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professmnal judgment and mamtaln
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ - Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain

- audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
- not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
- from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 1ntent10na1 omissions, mlsrepresentatlons,

or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit i in order to de51gn audlt
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

- accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness: of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to-
continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including

~ the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlylng transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



IN DEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF

AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED - continued
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s Respons1b111t1es for the Audit of the Flnanclal Statements of the Company Standlng
Alone contmued
, We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any s1gn1ﬁcant deﬁ01enc1es in
mternal control that we 1dent1fy during our audlt

Tocebedinclapor

PrlcewaterhouseCoopers

| ~Certified Public Accountants

HongKong 4 APR 2017



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Information
Opinion
What we have audited

The financial information of AXA China Region Insurance Company (Bermuda) Limited (the
“Company ’) set out on pages 15 to 123, which comprise: . ‘
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the cash flow statement and the revenue account for the year then ended; and

notes to the financial information, including a summary of significant accounting policies,
- and the supplementary schedules set out on pages 104 to 123.

B Opmlon

In our opinion, the financial information of the Company set out on pages 15 to 123 is prepared, in
all material respects, in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance and, on that basis, the long
term business balance sheet on pages 120 to 121, when read in conjunction with the notes on pages

21 to 103 and the supplementary schedules on pages 104 to 123, gives a true and fair view of the

financial position of the Company’s long term business as at 31 December 2016 in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the prov131ons of the Hong Kong
Insurance Compames Ordinance (the “Ordinance").

Basis for Opmlon :
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) and with

reference to Practice Note 810.2 (Revised), “The Duties of the Auditor of an Insurer authorized under
the Insurance Companies Ordinance” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

- Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
- Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Information section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

~ for our opinion.

~ Independence

We are 1nclependent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we have fulﬁlled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

-10 -



_ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED - continued
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

- Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Use

~ We draw attention to note 3 to the financial information, which describes the basis of accounting.
- The financial information is prepared to assist the Company to comply with the provisions of the
Ordinance. As a result, the financial information may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report

~ is intended solely for the submissions by the Company to the Hong Kong Insurance Authority and
- the Registrar of Companies and is not intended to be, and should not be, distributed to or used by
anyone for any other purpose. We do not assume respons1b111ty towards or accept liability to any -
- other person for the contents of our report. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

| , Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the directors’ report on pages 1 to 5, but does not include the financial
information and our auditot’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial information does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. :

‘In connection with our audit of the financial information, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
" the financial information or our knowledge obtained in the aud1t or otherwise appears to be

" materlally misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
~ other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Information

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial information that is in accordance with
the provisions of the Ordinance. This responsibility includes the preparation of a long term business
balance sheet which, when read in conjunction with the notes and supplementary schedules to the
financial information, gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company’s long term
business, in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the provisions of the Ordinance,

- and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of

financial information that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

~ In preparing the financial information, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and
‘using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

-11 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

v TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED continued
: (1ncorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Resp‘onsibilities of Dire_ctors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Information — continued '

In additidn, the direetors are required to maintain proper records in accordance with Section 16 of the

Ordinance and to maintain an excess of assets over liabilities by the aggregate of the relevant amount
. applicable and attributable to its general business as defined in Section 10 of the Ordinance and the -

greater of the required margin of solvency attributable to its long term business as determined by the

Company’s appointed actuary in accordance with the Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency) -

Regulatlon and the relevant amount applicable and attr1butab1e to its long term business as defined
1n the Ordmance

'Those charged W1th governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process. -

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Information

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial information as a whole
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of this financial information. In addition, we express opinion on whether proper records
have been maintained in accordance with Section 16 of the Ordinance and as to whether the value of
the assets of the Company as determined under the Ordinance exceeds its liabilities by not less than
 the relevant amount applicable and attributable to general business and the greater of the required
margin of solvency attributable to its long term business as determined by the Company’s appointed
actuary in accordance with the Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency) Regulation and the
relevant amount applicable and attributable to its long term business as defined in the Ordinance as at
‘ year end.

'As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial information, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The

- risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting- from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

-12 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ,
AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED - continued
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Information — continued

‘e Evaluate the appropriateness of -accounting pohcles used and the reasonableness of
' accountmg estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude On the appropriateness of the directors' use of the’ going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a gomg concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial information
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial information, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial information represents the underlymg transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We cOmmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we 1dent1fy during our audit.

: '\Report on matters under paragraphs 4(1AC) of Part 1 of the Third Schedule to the Hong Kong

Insurance Companies Ordinance

In respect of the Company’s general business, the relevant premium income, the relevant claims

- outstanding and the relevant amount applicable, as defined in Section 10 of the Ordinance and

reported in notes 7 and 21 to the financial information, amounted to US$18,663,585, US$36,833,410

~ and US$6,262,339 respectively as at 31 December 2016.

In respect of the Company’s long term business, the required margin of solvency, as determined by

the Company’s appointed actuary in accordance with the Insurance Companies (Margin of Solvency)
Regulation, being greater than the relevant amount applicable, as defined in Section 10 of the
Ordinance, amounted to US$386,024,136 as at 31 December 2016

-13 -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED - continued
(mcorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) ’

Report on matters under paragraphs 4(1AC) of Part 1 of the Third Schedule to the Hong Kong
_ Insurance Companies Ordinance — continued

In our opinion:

6] proper records have been maintained in accordance with Section 16 of the Ordinance in
- respect of the year ended 31 December 2016; and

(i1) - the value of the assets of the Company as stated in the financial information exceeds its
liabilities by not less than US$392,286,475 being the aggregate of the relevant amount
applicable attributable to its general business and the required margin of solvency
attributable to its long term business as at 31 December 2016.

5 PriéewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

 HongKongy 4 APR 2017

-14 -



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

NOTES
INSURANCE PREMIUM REVENUE
Gross premiums and contributions 7
. Reinsurance premiums accepted , 7
‘Reinsurance premiums ceded ‘ : 7
Investment income - ' - 8

- Net realised and unrealised gains/ (losses) on investments 8
Other income '

Gross claims

- Reinsurance claims accepted

Claims recoverable ' ' :
 Surrenders, maturities, dividends and withdrawals
Gross commissions.

~Commissions on reinsurance accepted
Commissions on reinsurance ceded

Management and other expenses ;

Change in provision for unexpired risk

- Investment expenses '

Increase in insurance liabilities

Increase/ (decrease) in reinsurance assets
(Increase)/ decrease in investment liabilities

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

- TAXATION 10

PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
NET OF TAX |

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
"INCOME FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 9

DIVIDENDS 11

Year ended
31.12.2016
US$

2,047,398,923

Year ended
31.12.2015
US$

1,596,039,841

(24,115,054)

35,219,686 36,718,786
(279,964,149)  (143,203,148)
1,802,654,460  1,489,555,479
404,673,449 481,975,523
133,178,602 (413,433,170)
243,922,730 144,849,205
(182,571,831)  (156,052,979)
(4,810,354) (1,262,026)
40,436,945 31,094,468
(489,708,962)  (457,931,506)
(504,056,295)  (454,387,966)
(2,173,591) (2,269,754)
30,392,776 48,482,955
(146,981,447)  (157,457,134)
1,457,001 -
(31,510,982)  (30,354,313)
(980,103,159)  (389,251,089)
48,770,887 (10,402,556)
(21,269,225) 99,834,962
342,301,004 222,990,099

(15,240,191)

131,404,159

318,185,950

339,154,067

(25,793,000)

(343,183,136)

-15-



BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES At31.12.2016 At31.12.2015
o US$ Us$
ASSETS ,
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 23,100 1,071,498
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 409,132 524,165
" INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 932,091,001 738,955,810
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 15 53,953,211 51,524,766
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 16 10,542,629,023 9,348,872,275
LOANS, 17 212,631,479 219,733,662
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18 - 2,878,569
OTHER ASSETS. :
Direct premiums receivable 24 180,335,472 134,907,547
. Debtors and prepayments, unsecured 24 125,002,440 148,930,863
Reinsurance assets : 20,21 - 579,318,453 513,371,789
Amounts due from reinsurers and intermediaries _
under reinsurance contracts ceded 24 606,506 607,066
Amounts due from an insurer subsidiary 24 133,060,270 115,735,701
Amount due from immediate holding company 24 61,975,471 60,674,966
Amount due from intermediate holding company 24 ' 310 310
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 24 8,386,298 4,670,373
‘Derivative financial instruments 29 26,406,379 22,798,421
Current tax assets _ - 191,022
Pledged bank deposits 28,31 358,077,928 323,022,515
Fixed term bank deposits 28 130,450,579 40,000,000
28 543,624,532 555,415,067

AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

- 16 -

2,147,244,638

1,920,325,640

13,888,981,584

12,283,886,385




AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital

Reserves
Share premium
Retained profits

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

INSURANCE LIABILITIES

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

OTHER LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities — investment contracts
Derivative financial instruments

Creditors and accrued charges

Claims payable

Commissions payable

Policyholders' funds on deposit

Dividend payable

Amounts due to reinsurers and intermediaries

under reinsurance contracts ceded
Amounts due to non-insurer subsidiaries

Amount due to intermediate holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Current tax payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

NOTES

19

20

18

22
29
24
21
24
24
24

24
24
24
24

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

US$ US$
175,782,800 175,782,800
383,257,000 383,257,000
900,605,453 608,212,503

1,283,862,453 991,469,503

1,459,645,253

1,167,252,303

8,693,784,442

7,716,476,754

624,963

1,723,716,048

1,787,288,605

9,351,150 53,456,412
200,418,251 87,265,325
107,624,481 92,348,711
150,779,355 117,081,101
269,394,850 113,293,392

1,199,087,649 1,095,310,111
20,402,543 27,832,790

19 2,587,963

2,986,757 2,979,308
48,181,315 20,713,610

2,984,508 -

3,734,926,926 3,400,157,328

13,888,981,584

12,283,886,385

The financial statements on pages 15 to 103 and the financial information prepared under the Insurance Companies

Ordinance on pages 104 to 123 were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 2 4 APR 2017

and were signed on its

e

__SF-farmrishn A.M.B. Breitburd
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
2 4 APR 2017 2 4 APR 2017
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

NOTES

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income on debt securities

- Interest income on bank deposits

_Interest income on policy loans

Interest income on secured mortgage and other loans

Interest income on amounts due from subsidiaries

Interest income on amount due from an immediate
~holding company

Net realised and unrealised galns/ (losses) on investments 8

Other income

.- Other interest income

Amortisation of 1ntang1b1e assets
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
‘Exchange difference ’

Gain on sale of discontinued operatrons

- Cash flows from operations before working capital changes
~Increase in direct premiums receivable
Decrease in debtors and prepayments
 (Increase) /decrease in reinsurance assets
Decrease in amounts due from reinsurers and intermediaries
- under reinsurance contracts ceded '
Decrease in amounts due from non-insurer subsidiaries
- Increase in amount due from an insurer subsidiary
Decrease /(increase) in amount due from an immediate
- holding company
Increase in amount due from an 1ntermed1ate
holding company :
(Increase) /decrease in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Increase /(decrease) in insurance liabilities
Increase /(decrease) in creditors and accrued charges
Increase in claims payable
- Increase in commissions payable
" Increase in policyholders' funds on deposit
Increase in dividend payable

(Decrease) /increase in amounts due to reinsurers and 1ntermed1ar1es

under reinsurance contracts ceded

(Decrease) /increase in amounts due to non-insurer subsidiaries

Decrease in amount due to an insurer subsidiary
Increase in amount due to an intermediate holding company
~ Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

(Decrease) /increase in financial liabilities — investment contracts

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operations

-19-

Year ended -

31.12.2016
USS$

342,301,004

(233,003,273)

(9,925,700)
(16,171,065)
(953)

(1,338,949)
(133,178,602)
(138,899,114)

Year ended
31.12.2015
US$

355,193,264

(240,430,776)
(10,601,248)
(16,526,979)

(1,420)
(60)

(1,082,365)
442311,126
(58.866,737)

(17,237,455) (11,674,549)
2,885,703 2,936,662
114,880 160,998
3,222 B
968 (772)
- (134,629,965)
(204,449,334) 326,687,179
(45,427,925) (40,893,805)
32,205,173 54,176,762
(65,946,664) 2,392,690
560 1,142,874
- 2,127,216
(17,324,569) - (115,735,701)
38,444 (12,715,040)
- (310)
(3,715,925) 4,140,886
(35,055,413) (60,384,533)
977,307,688 (784,263,886)
113,152,926 (89,454,587)
15,275,770 17,292,195
133,698,254 11,003,700
156,101,458 42,927,008
103,777,538 68,812,883
(7,430,247) 7,838,107
(2,587,944) 2,317,816
- (9,099,263)
7,449 2,249
27,467,705 5,549,903
(63,572,557) 381,766,723
1,013,522,387 (184,368,934)



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Hoﬁg Kong profits tax paid
Overseas withholding tax paid

" NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ (USED IN)

. OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

- Interest received on debt securities
 Interest received on secured mortgage and other loans -

Interest received on bank deposits

Interest received on policy loans

Other interest income received

Increase in fixed term bank deposits

Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations
Proceeds from sale of investments in securities
Purchase of investments in securities
 Purchase of derivative (net)

- Decrease in policyholders’ loans

Decrease in mortgage and other loans
Capitalisation of intangible assets
"Purchase of plant and equipment

" NET CASH (USED IN)/ GENERATED FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Dividends paid ' ‘

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS |

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
~ BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

Year ended Year ended

NOTES 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ US$

(12,724,628)  (19,613,819)

(4,711,364 (4,036,230)

996,086,395  (208,018,983)

224814387 250,387,779

953 1,420

9,812,642 10,601,248

16,241,036 16,526,979

17,192,678 11,674,549

(90,450,579)  (13,932,467)

; 137,240,766

7,779,209,482  6,628,823,422

(8,879,021,361)  (6,321,489,915)

(65,144,009) 32,932,082

7,076,311 4.704,417

25.872 316,221

(1,841,177) (2,838,720)

(165) ~(569,877)

(982,083,930) 754,377,904

11 (25,793,000)  (343,183,136)

(25,793,000)  (343,183,136)

(11,790,535) 203,175,785

555,415,067 352,239,282

28 543,624,532 555,415,067

The comparative balance includes components of profit from discontinued operations.

-20 -



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1.

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated under the laws of the Islands of Bermuda
with limited liability. Its parent company is AXA China Region Limited, incorporated in Bermuda
and its ultimate controlling party is AXA, incorporated in France. The address of the registered
office of the Company is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and
principal place of business of the Company was changed from 20th Floor, AXA Centre, 151

* Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong to 20th Floor, Vertical Square, 28 Heung Yip Road, Wong

Chuk Hang, Hong Kong on 1 March 2017.

' The pr1n01pal act1v1ty of the Company is underwriting insurance business.

o APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTTNG
- STANDARDS (HKFRSs)

(a)  Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2016
Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations — Amendments to HKFRS 11.

Clariﬁcation of acceptable methods of depremation and amortisation — Amendments to HKAS 16

- ‘and HKAS 38.

~ Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle, on HKFRS5 , “Non-current assets held for

sale and discontinued operations’, HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, HKAS 19,

‘Employee benefits’ and HKAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’.

Disclosure initiative - amendments to HKAS 1.

~ Other standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective for the financial year beginning
- on 1 January 2016 are not material to the Company.

221 -



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (HKFRSs) - continued

(b)  New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2016 and not early adopted

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instfuments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of

- financial assets and financial liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014. It replaces the
 guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial instruments. -

HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement model and establishes three primary
measurement categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through OCI and fair value
through P&L. The basis of classification depends on the entity's business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in equity instruments are
required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at inception
to present changes in fair value in OCI not recycling. There is now a new expected credit losses

- model that replaces the incurred loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For financial liabilities |
- there were no changes to classification and measurement except for the recognition of changes in

own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for liabilities designated at fair value through -

- profit or loss. HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright

line hedge effectiveness tests. It requires an economic relationship between the hedged item and
hedging instrument and for the ‘hedged ratio’ to be the same as the one management actually use
for risk management purposes. '

_ Contemporaneoué documentation is still required but is different to that currently prepared under

HKAS 39. The standard is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

- Early adoption is permitted.

On 17 January 2017, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 4, Insurance AC.ontra'cts,
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4, which provides two alternative

. measures to address the different effective dates of HKFRS 9 and the forthcoming insurance

contracts standard. These measures include a temporary option for companies whose activities

~are predominantly connected with insurance to defer the effective date of HKFRS 9 until the
~earlier of the effective date of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard and the annual
- reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, as well as an approach that allows an

entity to remove from profit or loss the effects of certain accounting mismatches that may occur

‘before the forthcoming insurance contracts standard is applied. The Company will evaluate
_available alternatives in determining the adoption date of the relevant standard. Based on the

amendments to HKFRS 4, the Company is eligible for electing the temporary option to defer the
effective date of HKFRS 9. The Company is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s full impact.

HKFRS 15, 'Re\}enue from contracts with customers' deals with revenue recognition and
establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s

- _contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or
- service and thus has the ability to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service.

The standard replaces HKAS 18 'Revenue' and HKAS 11 'Construction contracts' and related
interpretations. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
and earlier application is permitted. The Company is assessing the impact of HKFRS 15.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

2.

- APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (HKFRSs) - continued

(b)  New standards amendments and interpretations issued but not effective for the ﬁnanmal
year beginning 1 January 2016 and not early adopted - continued

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ addresses the definition of a lease, recognition and meaSurement of leases -
and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements about
the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change arising from HKFRS 16 is that
most operating leases will be accounted for on balance sheet for lessees. The standard replaces

- HKAS 17 ‘Leases and related interpretations. The Company is assessing the impact of HKFRS

16

HKAS 12, ‘Income taxes’, the standard is amended to clarify the recognition of deferred tax -
assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value. The amendment is effective for annual
perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The Company is assessmg the 1mpact of the
amendment

HKAS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows’, the standard is amended to introduce additional disclosure in

relation to the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendment is effective

for annual periods beglnnlng on or after 1 January 2017. The Company is assessing the impact of
the amendment '

There are no other HKFRSs interpretations that are not yet effectlve that would be expected to have a
' matenal 1mpact on the Company :

-23.



 AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTESb TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

~The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain

financial instruments which are measured at fair values, as explamed in the accounting pohcles set
out below. ”

* The ﬁnanbial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicéble Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cert1ﬁed Public Accountants and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. .

The financial 1nformat1on of the Company have been prepared in accordance with all the applicable
HKEFRS and the provision of the Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance (the “ICO”). -

Basis of preparation

The Corripany'has taken advantage of the exemption under HKFRS 10 from the requirement to ‘
prepare consolidated financial statements as it and its subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements of its parent, AXA SA. AXA SA was incorporated in France. It has prepared -

~ the consolidated financial statements for public use in accordance with IFRS. The address where

these consolidated financial statements are obtainable is www.axa.com.

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

3.1. . Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, and it is

probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company. Premiums from insurance - -

contracts and investment contracts with discretionary participation features (“DPF”) are

recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accruals basis.

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated
for losses on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification

. requirements for insurance contracts are recognised as reinsurance premiums ceded. Insurance
“contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer (inwards

reinsurance) are recognised as reinsurance premiums accepted.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.1 Revenue recognition — continued

Reinsurance premiums accepted and reinsurance premium ceded are recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income when they become payable by the contract holder.

For short-term insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue
(earned premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion of premium received
on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the
unearned premium liability which is included in insurance liabilities. Premiums are shown before
deduction of commission and are gross of any taxes or duties levied on premiums.

Fee income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for long term

business and retirement business in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities.

Interest income is fécognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is

-impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the

estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effectlve interest rate of the instrument, and
contmues unwinding the discount as interest income.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

- Purchases and sales of investments in securities are recognised as a trade date basis. Realised gains or

losses on disposal and unrealised gains or losses on 1nvestments are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

3.2 - Subsidiaries

~ A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the Company has control. The
~ Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns

from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity.

, Ihvestments in subsidiaries other than unit trusts are stated at cost as reduced by any identified

impairment loss. Investments in unit trusts are classified as financial assets and are stated at fair
value through profit or loss. ~

Income from the subsidiaries is accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received
or receivable during the year. D1V1dends are receivable when the right to receive has been
established. :

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends from
these investments if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the financial
statements exceeds the net asset value of the investee’s financial statements.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.3 Associates

. Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but no control,

generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates other than unit trusts are stated at cost,

as reduced by any identified impairment loss. Results of the associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received or receivable durmg the year.

'Investments in unit trusts are classified as financial assets and are stated at fair value through

profit or loss.

34 Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. = Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

‘Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement
of ‘comprehe'nsive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

s Deprec1at1on is provided to write off the cost of items of plant and equ1pment over their estlmated :
- useful lives to the Company after taking into account of their estlmated residual value, usmg the

straight-line method at the following annual rates:

Leasehold’improvements 10-20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

The assets residual values and useful hves are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting penod :

k An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

‘Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount

and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.5 Financial assets

(a) Classiﬁeation '

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categones financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and loans and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determlnes the classification of its financial
assets at initial reco gmtlon

(1) - Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are either financial assets held for trading or the

~ Company has designated those as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss upon initial

recognition.

A financial ‘asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
making. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedging

~ instruments. Financial assets held for trading consist of derivatives.

The Company deSignates certain financial assets upon initial reeognition as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (fair value option). This designation cannot subsequently be changed.

According to HKAS 39, the fair value option is only applied when the following conditions are met:

o the apphcatlon on the fair value option reduces or eliminates an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise; or

» the financial assets are part of a portfolio of financial instruments which is risk managed and
reported to senior management on a fair value basis; or '

e the ﬁnan01al assets con51st of debt host and embedded derivatives that must be separated

Fair value changes relating to financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as ‘Net realised and unrealised gains/ (losses)
on investments’. '

(i) - Loans and receivables .
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market, other than: (i) those that the entity intends to sell immediately or
in the short term, which are classified as held for trading, and those that the entity upon initial

“ recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (ii) those that the entity upon initial
- recognition designates as available-for-sale; and (iii) those for which the holder may not recover

substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.5 Financial assets - continued

(b) , Recognition and measurement

Regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets are recogmsed on trade-date - the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are 1n1t1a11y recogmsed at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not

- carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have explred or Where the Company has transferred substant1a11y all risks and
rewards of ownersh1p

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. The fair

values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. Valuation of fair
' values for unlisted unit trusts is based on latest available bid price or net asset value per unit. If there

is no active market for a financial asset, the Company establishes fair value by using valuation

techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis /
~ option pricing models, and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

For holdings in hedge funds and private equity funds, fair values are determined based on the net
- asset values provided by the general partner or manager of each investment, the amounts which are

-generally audited on an annual basis. The transaction price is used as the best estimate of fair value at

inception. The fair values of pr1vate companies are determined based on the net asset values reported
by adm1mstrators

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ are presented in the statement of comprehenswe income as ‘net realised and unreahsed
gains / (loss) on investments’ in the period in which they arise.

Interest and dividend from ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as ‘Investment income” when the Company’s right to receive

g payments is established.

_ Interest on loans and receivables calculated using the effective interest rate method is recogmsed in -
the statement of comprehenswe income as part of ‘Investment income’.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.5  Financial assets - continued
(¢)  Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a

result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that a loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Company uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment

loss include:

. Dehnquency in contractual payments of principal or interest; :

Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for example, equ1ty ratio, net income
- percentage of sales);

+ - Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

+  Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

- Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
. » Deterioration in the value of collateral; and -

. Downgrading to below investment grade level.

' The Company first assesses whether objéctive evidence of impairment exists individually for

financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment. - v

For loans and receivables, the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of loss is recognised in the statement of

COIIIpI'GhGIlSlVC mcome.

Ifina subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an -

improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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3.

- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - centinued

3.6  Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and other financial liabilities. ~All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

- recognised initially at fair value.

v' ‘(i) ; Financial liabilities at fair value threugh proﬁt or loss

A financial liability is typ1ca11y classified as fair value through profit or loss if it meets the following
cr1ter1a

e vThe designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency

(sometimes referred to as an ‘accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise from measuring
the financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

¢ Part of a group of financial liabilities that are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in
. accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy and reported to key

management personnel on that basis; and v
«  Financial instruments, such as debt securities 1ssued containing one or more embedded
derivatives significantly modify the cash flows.

Financ1a1 11ab111t1es des1gnated at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value and any
gains and losses from changes in fair value are recogmsed as increase / decrease in investment
11ab1ht1es in the statement of comprehensive i income.

F1nanc1a1 liabilities are derecogmsed when they are extinguished - that is, when the obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(i)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense calculated
using the effective interest rate method is recognised as investment expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income. |

37 - Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted
market prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,

‘including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives

are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Gains or losses are recognised in net realised and unrealised gains or losses in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. ’
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.8  Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

“carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by

which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the

" higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing

impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

3.9  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a

- result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the-
“obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle

‘the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the obligation.

3.10  Insurance and investment contracts — classification -

 The Company isSucs contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contracts may
also transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Company defines significant insurance risk as
contracts which must have at least one plausible scenario, excluding scenarios that lack commercial
substance, in which cash flows are altered by an amount that is significant relative to the fair value of
the contract or the premium received for the contract and the contract holder is compensated. The

- event leading to th¢ change in cash flows may be high incidence but small severity or small
- incidence but great severity. o :

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk.

A number of insurance and investment contracts contain DPF. This feature entitles the holder to
receive, as a supplement to guaranteed benefits, additional benefits or bonuses:

= thatare likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual benefits;

— whose amount or timing is contractually at the discretion of the Company; and
— that are contractually based on: v
(i) the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a specified type of contract;
(ii) realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool of assets held by the
Company; or }
(iii) the profit or loss of the Company, fund or other entity that issues the contract.
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VSIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued -

3.11 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

(@)  Reco gnition and measurement

The insurance. liabilities in respect of long term business are determined by the Company's
appointed actuary in accordance with the requirements of the Hong Kong Insurance Companies
(Determination of Long Term Liabilities) Regulation. At each balance sheet date, the Company
assesses its recognised insurance liabilities to determine whether they are adequate, using
estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts based on the current best estimate

‘ assumptions If the assessment of liability adequacy shows that the carrying amounts of its

insurance liabilities are inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash ﬂows the entire

_deﬁ01ency is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

AcCording to section 15 of the Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance, -initial acquisition
expenses can be capitalised to reduce new business strain, subject to a maximum limit of 1.5 times
valuation net premium. This is also limited by the actual initial expenses incurred.

Policy benefits vested in the policy owner (policyholder’s bonus) are treated as an expense and any

~amount payable at the reporting date is included in other liabilities.

~ Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF are classified into three main categories,

depending on the duration of risk and whether or not the terms and conditions are fixed.

(i) Short-term insurance contracts

These contracts are casualty, property and short-duration life insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers against the risk of causing harm to
third parties as a result of their legitimate activities. -Damages covered include both contractual and -

 non-contractual events. The typical protection offered is designed for employers who become
~ legally liable to pay compensation to injured employees (employers’ liability) and for individual and

business customers who become liable to pay compensation to a third party for bodily harm or

property damage (pubhc liability).

Propel“cy insurance contracts mainly compensate the Company’s customers for damage suffered to

their properties or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake commercial activities on

their premises could also receive compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the inability to use
the insured properties in their business activities (business interruption cover).

Short-duration life insurance contracts protect the Company’s customers from the consequences of

-events (such as death or disability) that would affect the ability of the customer or his/her dependants

to maintain their current level of income. Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence of the specified
insurance event are either fixed or linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by the
pohcyholder There are no maturity or surrender benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.11  Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF - continued
(a) Reco gnition and measurement - continued

(i)  Short-term insurance contracts - continued -

‘For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue. The portion of premium received on in-

force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the unearned

‘ premlum liability which is included in insurance liabilities. Premiums are shown before deduction of

commission and are gross of any taxes or duties levred on premiums.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as

incurred based on the estimated liability for compensation owed to contract holders or third parties
damaged by the contract holders. They include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and arise
from events that have occurred up to the balance sheet date even if they have not yet been reported to

~ the Company. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of assessments for

individual cases reported to the Company and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but not

: reported
{: (ii)' | Long-term insurance contracts

Insurance contracts with and without DPF include traditional life insurance contracts and the unit-

linked contracts that have significant mortality risk. These contracts insure events associated with
human life (for example death or survival) over a long duration. Premiums are recognised as
revenue when they become payable by the contract holder Premlums are shown before deduct1on of
commission.

‘ Beneﬁts are recorded as an expense when they are incurred.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the
premiums are recognised. The liabilities for traditional life contracts are calculated as the difference

- between the estimated present value of sum assured and any reversionary bonuses and the estimated

present value of net premiums.

For unit-linked insurance contracts, insurance premiums are recognised as revenue. Their liabilities

‘reflect changes in the unit prices and are decreased by policy administration fees, mortality and
- surrender charges and any withdrawals. Fees charged for investment management services are

recognised -as revenue based on the stage of completion of the contracts. Other fees received at the
inception of a contract are deferred and recognised on a straight line basis over the expected term of
the contract. :
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3.1 1 Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF - continued

- (a) - Recognition and measurement - continued

(i) Investment contracts with DPF -

Insurance premium are recognised directly as revenue. These liabilities are increased by credited
interest and are decreased by policy administration fees, surrender charges and any withdrawals.

' (b) : 'Embedded derivatives ’

The Company does not separately measure embedded derivatives that meet the definition of an
- insurance contract or options to surrender insurance contracts for a fixed amount (or an amount based

on a fixed amount and an interest rate).

- (© Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for
losses on one or more contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements
for insurance contracts as mentioned above are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts

_ that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as financial assets. Insurance

contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another i 1nsurer (mwards _

relnsurance) are included with insurance contracts.

The benefits to which the Company is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised as
reinsurance assets.  These assets consist of amounts due from reinsurers, as well as reinsurance assets
that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract.  Reinsurance liabilities are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance -

‘contracts and are recognised as an expense when due.

“The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment at each balance sheet date. If there is

objective evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount
of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
statement of comprehensive income. The Company gathers the objective evidence that a reinsurance
asset is impaired using the same process adopted for financial assets held at amortised cost. The
impairment loss is also measured and recogmsed following the same method used for these financial
assets. :
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~ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.11  Insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF - continued

- Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts and investment contracts

* Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include amounts due to and from agents,”

brokers and insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the
carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the
statement of comprehensive income. The Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance
receivable is impaired using the same process adopted for loans and receivables. The impairment
loss is also measured and recognised under the same method used for these financial assets.

‘(ev) - Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

~ Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usualty damaged) property acquired in settling

a claim (i.e. salvage). The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for payment of
some or all costs (i.e. subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the measurement of the insurance
liability for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other assets when the liability is settled.

-The allowance is the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal of the property.

Subrdgation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance in the measurement of the
insurance liability for claims and are recognised in other assets when the liability is settled. The
allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered from the action against the liable

third party.

(D ~ Liability adequacy testing

At each end of the reporting period, current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and
claims handling and administration expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing
such liabilities, are projected to assess if future revenue (income plus release of reserve) is adequate
to cover future obligations. - Any deficiency will be immediately charged to profit or loss and a
reserve will be set up. -

3.12  Investment contracts without DPF

Investment contracts without DPF are recognised as financial liabilities on the balance sheet when

~ the Company becomes a party to the contractual obligations.

Investment contracts without DPF are financial liabilities whose fair value is dependent on the fair
value of underlying financial assets, derivatives and/or investment property (linked products) and are
designated at inception as at fair value through profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.12 Investment contracts without DPF - continued

Valuation techniques are used to establish the fair value at inception and each reporting date. The

Company’s main valuation techniques incorporate all factors that market participants would consider
and are based on observable market data. The fair value of a unit-linked financial liability is
determined using the unit values that reflect the fair values of the financial assets contained within

‘the Company’s unitised investments funds linked to the financial liability, multiplied by the number

of units attributed to the contract holder at the balance sheet date.

_This product group includes retirement business contracts, as well as the unit-linked contracts that

does not have significant mortality rrsk

’3 13 Dividend distribution

- Dividend clistribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s

financial statements in the period in which the dividends are declared by the Board of Directors of

B the Company.

3.14 Current and deferred income tax

‘The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or

loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
d1rectly in equity. In this case the tax is also reco gnlsed in other comprehensive i income or directly
in equity, respectively.

The current incOme tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws). that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled. '

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the

- temporary difference is controlled by the group and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.14. - Current and deferred income tax - continued

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

-3.15 Foreign currency translation

(a Functional and presentation currency

The financial information is presented in United States dollars which is the same as the funcuonal

currency of the Company
(b) Transactlons and balances
Foreign currency transactions that are transactions denominated, or that require settlement, in a

foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such

'~ transactions and from the translation of year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in forelgn currencies are recogmsed in the income statement

‘ Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated with the closing rate as at the

reporting date. If several exchange rates are available, the forward rate is used at which the future
cash flows represented by the transaction or balance could have been settled if those cash flows had
occurred. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are

- translated with the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition non-monetary items in a foreign
~currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
falr value was determined.

Translation differences on financial assets and liabilities held at fa1r Value through income are
reported as part of the fair Value gain or loss.

3_.16 Emnlovee benefits

r (a)" Pension obligations

The Company operates a number of defined contribution plans. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to separate trustee-administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has
no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient

assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior

periods. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future

payments is available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

3.16 Employee benefits - continued
(b)° Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses, based on a formula that takes

~ into consideration the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.

The Company recognises a provision where contractually obhged or where there is a past practice

'that has created a constructrve obligation.

| (C) , Share-based payments ‘

AXA operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the
Company receives services from directors and employees as consideration for equity instruments

. -of AXA. The fair value of the directors and employees services received in exchange for the grant

of the equity instruments is recognised as an expense being absorbed by an intermediate holding

 company. The total amount to be recogmsed as an expense in the intermediate holding

company’s statement of comprehensive income is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted '

. 1nclnd1ng any market perforrnance conditions; _
« excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting condmons and
. 1nc1ud1ng the impact of any non- vesting conditions.

©3.17 = Cash and cash equlval_ents

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less. :

’ 3».18 " Share ‘capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity

: Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as

a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

3 ._1 9  Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments traded in other than active markets or that do not have quoted prices have
less observability ‘and are measured at fair value using valuation models or other pricing
techniques that require more judgment. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset
or liability being valued occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing

 information on an ongoing basis. An other than active market is one in which there are few

transactions, the prices are not current, price quotations vary substantially either over time or
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3.19  Fair value of financial instruments - continued-

among market makers, or in which little information is released publicly for the asset or liability

being valued. Pricing observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of

financial instrument, whether the financial instrument is new to the market and not yet

established, the characteristics specific to the transaction and general market conditions. The

Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumpt1ons that are mainly
based on market cond1t1ons ex1st1ng at the end of each reporting period.

Unobservable inputs are only used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable

inputs are not available, allowing for circumstances in Whlch there is little, if any, market activity
for the asset or 11ab111ty

o 3 .20 Busmess combination under common control

Business combinations under common control are accounted for in the financial statements of the -
Company prospectively from the date the business is acquired. In relation to common control
business combination, from the controlling party’s perspective no acquisition is deemed to have
occurred and there is a continuation of risks and benefits to the controlling party. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value. The consideration

~ will include any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Asset

and liabilities assumed are initially recognised at their carrying amounts, which is equivalent to
their existing book values. There is no recognition of goodwill. Any difference between the fair
value of the con51derat10n paid and the amounts at wh1ch the assets and liabilities are recorded is
recogmsed directly in equ1ty

Acquisition—related costs are expensed as incurred.

3.21 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-for-sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount
is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable.
The non-current assets except for certain assets as explained below (or disposal groups), are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Insurance contracts, deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, and financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries and associates), which are classified as held for sale, would continue to be measured
in accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in this note.

A discontinued operation isa component of the group’s business, the operations and cash flows of

which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the group and which represents a separate

 major line of business or geographic area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
~dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary

acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

- When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is presented in the income

statement, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-
tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal,
of the assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.
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'CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN = APPLYING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

‘ The Company makes estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical

- experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are beheved to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimate of future benefit payments and premiums arising from long-term insurance contracts

The determination of the liabilities under long-term insurance contracts is dependént on estimates

made by the Company. Estimates are made as to the expected number of deaths for each of the
years in which the Company is exposed to risk. The Company bases these estimates on standard
industry and national mortality tables that reflect recent historical mortality experience, adjusted
where appropriate to reflect the Company’s own experience. - The estimated number of deaths
plus an additional layer of prudence determines the value of the benefit payments and the value of
the valuation premiums. “The main source of uncertainty is that epidemics such as AIDS, SARS

- and wide-ranging lifestyle changes, such as in eating, smoking and exercise habits, could result in

future mortality and morbidity being significantly worse than in the past for the age groups in
which the Company has significant exposure to mortality and morbldlty I’lSk Details are set out in

knote 20 to the ﬁnan01a1 statements.

Valuation mortality and interest rate assumptions

The Company selects ifs key assumptions and perfOrrried sensitivity analysis through a prudent

~ approach and to reflect the actual experience development.

. For long-term insurance contracts, prudent rhortality assumptions and a valuation interest rate lower

than or equal to the regulatory maximum interest rate are used to determine the liabilities. These
assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure the assumptions used still meet regulatory
requirements and the liabilities remain adequate.

Impairment of assets

- If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on loans and receivables or
- other assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between

the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced by an
impairment allowance, which is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. As a

| ~ practical approach, the Company may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value

using an observable market price.

,Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, net
asset value reported to general partners or managers by fund administrators, discounted cash flow
analysis / option priciig models, and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.
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5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies

‘The Company issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This section

summarises these risks, including other market risks, that the Company identifies and the way it

- manages them

5.1 Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the

~ amount of the resulting claim is uncertain. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is
- random and therefore unpredlctable ’

For a portfoho of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and
reserving, the principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual
claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could
occur because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than estimated.
Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary
from year to year from the Ievel established using stat1st1ca1 techniques.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk dlver51ﬁcat1on in terms of type and

amount of risk, geo graphlcal locatlon and type of industry covered.

Experlence shows that the Iarger the portfolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the

- relative variability about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is

less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The

- Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance

risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of
risks to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.
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- MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.1 Insurance risk - continued

(a) ~ Casualty and property insurance risks

; ('i)" Frequency and severity of claims

The 'frequency' and severity of olaims can be affected by several factors. These include weather,
: society’s sentiment towards claims and increasing court awards for bodily injury compensation.

- vThe Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy, product design, adequate

reinsurance arrangements and proactive claims handling.

 The 'underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in

terms of type and amount of risk, industry and geography. - Prior to the acceptance of major risk,

~ site visits by in-house assessor and pre-risk surveys will be performed to ensure risks are only

accepted within the Company s capacity.

- Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the

Company has the right not to renew individual policies, to impose deductibles and to reject the
payment of a fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Company to pursue third

- parties for payment of some or all costs (ie, subrogation). Furthermore, the Company limits
employers’ liability contracts to a maximum cover of HK$100 million (about US$13 million) for -

employers with less than 200 workers or HK$200 million (about US$26 million) for employers

~ with more than 200 workers. For property insurance, underwriters will consider their retention

table for different industry so as to avoid accepting risk more than the total capacity under surplus

treaties. The present total capacity is HK$75 million (about US$9.6 million) via fourteen lines.

The Company also has in place excess of loss treaties which ensure that any loss exceeding the

retention amount will be recoverable from the reinsurers. The prevailing loss retention under the
combined excess of loss treaties covering General Liabilities, Motor and Employers’ Liabilities is
HK$4 million (about US$0.5 million) for each and every loss. Under the Property Catastrophe

excess of loss treaties, the loss retention is HK$5 million (about US$0.65 million). Under the.

Marine Cargo excess of loss treaties, the Company has a loss retention of HK$2 million (about

; US$0 26 mllhon)

The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose
deductibles and reject fraudulent claims. These contracts are underwritten by reference to the
replacement value of the properties and contents insured. The exposure of risk, maximum
probable loss ‘and claims payment limits are always included to cap the amount payable on
occurrence of the insured event. Cost of rebuilding properties, of replacement or indemnity for
contents and time taken to restart operations for business interruption are the key factors that

~influence the level of claims under these policies. The greatest likelihood of significant losses on

these contracts arises from storm or flood damage. The Company has reinsurance cover for such
damage to limit losses to HK$5 million (about US$0.65 million) in any one loss occurrence.
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5 MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND F INAN CIAL RISKS - continued
| 5.1 | Insurance tisk - continued

i(a) Casnalty and property insurance risks - continued

(ii) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Claims on casualty and property contracts are payable on a claims- occurrence basis. The
Company is liable for all insured events that occur during the term of the contract even 1f the loss
is discovered after the end of the contract term.

. For casualty risks, claims can be settled over a long period of time and a larger element of the
claims provision relates to incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) claims. There are several variables
 that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts. These mainly relate to the
inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and their risk
management procedures. The compensation paid on these contracts is the monetary awards
granted for bodily injury suffered by employees (for employer’s liability covers) or members of
‘the public (for public liability covers). Such awards are lump-sum payments that are calculated as
the present value of the lost earnings and rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur
as a result of the accident. For property risks, claims are usually of a much shorter duratlon and
relatively fewer IBNR claims are held at year-end. :

‘The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the
expected subrogation value and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to
ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the
uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be
different from the original liability established. The liability for these contracts comprises a
provision for IBNR, a provision for reported claims not yet paid and a provision for unexpired

risks at the balance sheet date. ‘

(b) -~ Long-term insurance contracts
1 'Frequency and severity of claims

For contracts where death is the insured risk, the most significant factors that could increase the
overall frequency of claims are epidemics (such as AIDS or SARS) or widespread changes in

-~ lifestyle, such as eating, smoking and exercise habits, resulting in earlier or more claims than
expected. Undue concentration by amounts could have an 1mpact on the severity of benefit
payments on a portfolio basis. :

For contracts with fixed and guaranteed benefits and fixed future premiums, there are no
mitigating terms and conditions that reduce the insurance risk accepted. For contracts with DPF,
insurance risk can be shared with the insured.

‘For unit-linked business, the Company charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis. It has the
right to alter these charges based on its mortality experience and hence minimise its exposure to
mortality risk. Delays in implementing increases in charges and market or regulatory restraints
over the extent of the increases may reduce its mitigating effect.
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MANAGEMENT OF IN SURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued
5.1 “ Insurance risk - continued

(b)  Long-term insurance‘contracts - continued

(i) | Frequency and severity of claims - conﬁnued

The Company manages these I‘lSkS through 1ts underwrltlng strategy and reinsurance
arrangements

The undefwriting strategy is intended to ensure that the risks underwritten are well diversified in
terms of type of risk and the level of insured benefits. For example, medical selection is included
in the Company’s underwriting procedures with premiums varied to reflect the health condition
and family medical history of the applicants. The Company also underwrites using geographical,
nationality and occupation rating.

(i)  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts

: Uncertainty‘ in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-term

insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of changes in overall levels of mortahty and

the vanablhty in contract holder behav1our

The Co_mpany uses appropriate base tables of standard mortality according to the type of contract

~ being written. An investigation into the actual experience of the Company over the last three years
_is carried out, and statistical methods are used to adjust the crude mortality rates to produce a best

estimate of expected mortality for the future. A margin of prudence is added to the best estimate

. mortality rate to derive the final mortality assumption used.

The 1mpact of any hlstorlcal evidence of selective termination behaviour will be reflected in this
experience.

(i) - Guaranteed annuity options

The amount of insurance risk under contracts with guaranteed annuity options is also dependent

“on the number of contract holders that will exercise their option (‘option take-up rate’). This will

depend significantly on the investment conditions that apply when the options can be exercised.

The lower the current market interest rates in relation to the rates implicit in the guaranteed

annuity rates, the more likely it is that contract holders will exercise their options. Continuing

improvements in longevity reflected in current annuity rates will increase the likelihood of

contract holders exercising their options as well as increasing the level of insurance risk borne by
the Company under the annuities issued. To date, none of the policy holders have exercised this
option and hence the Company does not have sufficient historical data on which to base its

- estimate of the number of contract holders who will exercise their options. As a result of this, the

Company estimates the cost of this option to be insignificant under the current economic
environment.
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5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued
5.1 Insurance riSk - continued

(c)  Short-duration life insurance contracts

@ F requency and severity of claims

These contr_acts are mainly issued to employers to insure their commitments to their employees in
terms of their pension fund and other employee benefit plans. The risk is affected by the nature of
the industry in which the employer operates, in addition to the factors described above. The risk

© of death and disability will vary by industry Undue concentration of risk by industry will

therefore increase the risk of a change in the underlying average mortality or morb1d1ty of

. employees in a given industry, with s1gn1ﬁcant effects on the overall insurance risk.

. Insuranoe risk under disability contracts is also dependent on economic conditions in the industry.

Historical data indicates that recession and unemployment in an industry will increase the number
of claims for disability benefits as well as reducing the rate of recovery from disability. The
Company attempts to manage this risk through its underwriting, claims handling and reinsurance
policy. The amount of disability benefit cover provided per individual is restricted to a maximum
of 70% of the individual’s monthly income for individual life business. Surplus reinsurance
contracts have been purchased by the Company, the retention is HK$40,000 per month on any one
life.

() Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

 There is no need to estimate mortality rates or morbidity rates for future years because these

contracts have short duration. However, for incurred disability income claims, it is necessary to
estimate the rates of recovery from disability for future years.

5.2 Financial risk

- The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets, financial liabilities
- (investment contracts and borrowings), reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In particular

the key financial risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets are not sufficient to fund the
obligations arising from its insurance and investment contracts. The most important components
of financial risk are liquidity risk and market risks, which include interest rate risk, equity price
risk, credit risk and currency risk. '

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which
are exposed to general and specific market movements. The risks that the Company primarily
faces due to the nature of its investments and liabilities are interest rate risk and equity price risk.

The Company manages these positions within an asset liability management (“ALM”) framework

that has been developed to achieve long-term investment returns in excess of its obligations under
insurance and investment contracts.
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50

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued
52 Financial risk - continued
The Risk Committee of the Company identifies the risk appetite of the Company and assesses the

Company’s risk exposure regularly. The Company has a Management Investment Committee that
determines the investment strategy accordingly. A set of the Company’s investment mandate is

- then distributed to the Company’s fund managers, which provides appropriate guidelines with
- respect to the portfolio they manage. These investment instructions within specify limits for each
portfolio with respect to authorised securities (including derivatives), gearing, free liquidity,
- concentration, currency, duration and credit limits (where applicable). - Each fund manager

re gularly monitors its portfohos against these criteria and reports breaches.

5.3 Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations -
- associated with its financial liabilities due to shortage of liquid funds. In particular to the

Company, the risk that the Company’s financial assets are insufficient to fund the guaranteed

~ benefit payments required under its insurance and investment contracts when they fall due.

~ The Coinpany manages the liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets such as cash and

short-term deposits. The underlying investments backing the liabilities that are traded in an active

 market and are readily disposed of can also meet the requirement of benefit payments as needed.
For the underlying investment backing the liabilities that are not traded in an active market, the -
-Company has the contractual right to proceed to payment upon surrender/settlement when and

only when the underlying asset 1tse1f is settled.

The following table analyses the Company’s financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Asset balances under no

stated maturity equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Liability cash flows greater than five years consist of the maturity payments and the net liability
cash flow adjusted for future premiums associated with these policy liabilities including the
investment returns and other outgoes on such premium flows.
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5.3 Liguidity' risk — continued

At 31.12.2016

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

Contractual/ expected cash flows (undiscounted)
Greater than one

. Less than year and less ~ Greater
Nostated . orequalto - than or equal than
Carrying value maturity one year to five years _five years
US$’000- US$000 - - -US$000 US$’000 US$°000

Insurance and financial assets: _ » ‘ _ :

Investments in subsidiaries o 932,091 932,091 » - - s -
" Investments in associates _ 53,953 53,953 - ' - ' -
~Listed debt securities: ' ’

- Fixed rate I 6,322,142 - 252275 1,408,951 8,450,584

- Floating rate 12,324 - 746 © 2,986 16,626
“Unlisted debt securities: . : '

- - Fixed rate _ 384,183 - 64,800 73,440 370,002
- Floating rate - : 94,907 ~ - 1,883 101,371 -
Listed equity securities 783,033 783,033 - - -
Unlisted unit trust investments 2,658,031 2,658,031 : - ‘ - -
Private companies - 281,930 281,930 - - -
Private company debentures 6,079 Co- - 6,079 -
Loans o 212,631 - 212,624 7 -
Direct premiums receivable 180,335 - 180,335 - -
Debtors and prepayments, unsecured 125,002 - 125,002 - -
Reinsurance assets 579,318 - 94,177 100,676 504,256
Amounts due from reinsurers and =~ - - '

_intermediaries under reinsurance v , ,
contracts ceded” : 607 - 607 - Co-
.- Amounts due from non-insurer - . <

subsidiaries - - - - -

Amount due from an insurer
subsidiary 133,060 - 133,060 , - -

Amount due from immediate
holding company v 61,975 - - - 61,975 - -

- Amount due from intermediate
~ holding company - - - - -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries = 8,386 - 8,386 - -
Derivative financial instruments:

- Forward currency options 9,435 - 9,127 308 -
- Equity options - 5,594 - - 5,594 -
- Stepup swap. - - : - ’ - -
- Interest rate swap : 11,377 - 5 6,861 4,511
Pledged bank deposits 358,078 - . 205,771 152,307 -
Fixed term bank deposits 130,451 - 111,451 19,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents 543,625 - 543,625 - -
Current tax assets - - - - -
13,888,547 4,709,038 2,005,849 1,877,580 9,345,979
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53  Liquidity risk - continued

At 31.12.2016 - continued

' MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND F INANCIAL RISKS - continued

Contractual/ expected cash flows (undiscounted)

Greater than one
Less than year and less ~ Greater
No stated orequalto  thanorequal  than
Carrying value maturity one year to five years five years
Us$’000 - US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Insurance and financial liabilities:
Insurance contract with DPF 6,468,543 - (376,196) (875,420) 22,588,568
Insurance contract without DPF 2,074,469 - - 1,436,951 227,501 833,869
- Investiment contract with DPF 150,625 - (23,485) (82,910) 784,673
Short-term insurance contracts 147 - 147 : - ‘ -
Financial liabilities in investment
contracts 1,723,716 - 1,686,682 (5,608) 87,568
Creditors and accrued charges 200,418 - 200,418 - -
- Claims payable | ‘ 107,624 - 107,624 - -
Comumnissions payable . 150,779 - 150,779 - -
Policyholders’ fund on deposit 269,395 - 269,395 - -
Dividend payable 1,199,087 - 1,199,087 - -
Amounts due to reinsurers and
intermediaries under reinsurance . .
contracts ceded 20,403 - 20,403 - -
Amounts due to non-insurer
‘subsidiaries - - - - -
Amount due to an insurer subsidiary - - - - - -
_Amount due to an immediate
holding company - - - . - -
Amount due to intermediate
holding company 2,987 - 2,987 - -
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 48,181 - 48,181 - -
Derivative financial instruments:
- Forward currency contracts 6,476 - 3,671 2,805 -
- Equity options - - - - -
- Step up swap - - - - -
- Interest rate swap 2,875 - 105 1,348 1,422
Current tax payable 2,985 - 2,985 - -
12,428,710 - 4,729,734 (732,284) - 24,296,100
Net expected cash inflow/(outflows) 4,709,038 (2,723,885). 2,609,864 = (14,950,121)
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MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.3 Liquidity risk - continued

At31.122015

Contractual/ expected cash flows (undiscounted)

Greater than one
: Less than year and less  Greater
: No stated orequalto  thanorequal.  than
Carrying value maturity one year to five years five years
US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
JInsurance and financial assets:
Investments in subsidiaries 738,956 738,956 - - -
Investments in associates 51,525 51,525 - - -
Listed debt securities: .
- Fixed rate 5,002,081 - 275,576 1,135,651 6,873,335
- Floating rate 431 - 36 145 2,256
Unlisted debt securities:
- Fixed rate 815,702 - 43,805 188,226 1,093,143
. - Floating rate 94,965 - 95,435 - -
" Listed equity securities 578,626 578,626 - - -
Unlisted unit trust investments 2,558,780 2,558,780 - - -
Private companies 291,234 291,234 - - -
‘Private company debentures 7,054 - 7,054 - -
Loans 219,734 - 219,711 23 -
Direct premiums receivable 134,908 - 134,908 - -
- Debtors and prepayments, unsecured 148,931 - 148,931 - -
" .Reinsurance assets _ 513,372 - 36,551 148,407 508,433
Amounts due from reinsurers and ' :
intermediaries under reinsurance :
contracts ceded 607 - - 607 - -
- Amounts due from non-insurer
subsidiaries - - - - -
Amount due from an insurer
subsidiary 115,736 - 115,736 - -
Amount due from immediate
holding company 60,675 - 60,675 - -
Amount due from intermediate :
holding company ‘ - - - - -
“Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 4,670 - 4,670 - -
Derivative financial instruments:
- Forward currency. options 3,456 - 3,454 2 -
- Equity options 5,136 - 37 5,099 -
- Step up swap - - 939 21,034 3,560
.- Interest rate swap . 14,206 - 12 3,620 10,574
Pledged bank deposits 323,023 - 159,069 163,954 -
Fixed term bank deposits 40,000 - 40,000 - -
" Cash and cash equivalents 555,415 - 555,415 - -
Current tax assets 191 - 191 - -
12,279,414 4,219,121 1,902,812 1,666,161 8,491,301
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MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

At 31.12.2015 - continued

Insurance and financial liabilities:

_ - Insurance contract with DPF

~ Insurance contract without DPF
Investment contract with DPF

- Short-term insurance contracts

Financial liabilities in investment
contracts. . - ,

" Creditors and accrued charges

Claims payable

Commissions payable

Policyholders’ fund on deposit

Dividend payable :

Amounts due to reinsurers and
intérmediaries under reinsurance
-contracts ceded

Amounts due to non-insurer
subsidiaries

- Amount due to an insurer subsidiary

Amount due to an immediate

~holding company. .

Amount due to intermediate
holding company

- Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Derivative financial instruments:
- Forward currency contracts

"= Equity options

- Step up swap

- Interest rate swap
- Current tax payable

Net expected cash inflow/(outflows)

~ 5.3 Liguidigz risk - continued

Contractual/ expected cash flows (undiscounted)

Greater than one
Less than year and less  Greater
No stated orequalto . thanorequal  than
-Carrying value maturity one year to five years . five years

US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$°000 US$’000

- 5,851,724 - (174,261) - (245,408) 16,063,874

1,760,023 - 1,081,648 269,729 729,471

96,309 - (16,819) (76,387) 701,796

8,421 - 421 - -

1,787,289 - 1,738,224 - 4,855 69,009

87,265 - 87,265 - -

92,349 - 92,349 - -

117,081 - 117,081 - -

- 113,293 - 113,293 - -

1,095,310 - 1,095,310 - -
27,833 - 27,833 - -

2,588 - 2,588 . - : -

2,979 - 2,979 - . -

20,714 - 20,714 - -

4,136 - 905 3,231 - -

137 - 137 - -

47,151 - 10,768 54,419 61,982

2,032 - 370 - 625 1,037

11,116,634 - 4,208,805 11,064 17,627,169
4,219,121 (2,305,993) 1,655,097 (9,135,868)
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MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.4 Interest rate risk

(a)  Long-term insurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF

Insurance and investment contracts with DPF have benefit payments whose financial component
is usually a guaranteed fixed interest rate (for the insurance contracts, this rate may apply to
maturity and/or death benefits) and hence the Company’s primary financial risk on these contracts
is- the risk that interest income and capital redemptions from the financial assets backing the
liabilities are insufficient to fund the guaranteed benefits payable. There are also supplemental
benefits payable (which are not guaranteed) to holders of these contracts. These are based on
historic and current rates of return on the assets in which the funds are invested, as well as the

Company s expectations of future investment returns.

, ‘The Company,mamly bears financial risk in relation to the guaranteed benefits payable under
‘these contracts. Any interest rate risk in relation to the DPF component liability will be limited for
- the Company as these are discretionary benefits. :

(b)  Investment contracts without DPF

For linked centracts,-the financial risks are borne by the policyholder. Therefore, the Company
does not have any market risk exposure in relation to these contracts.

The Company’s primary exposure to financial risk from these contracts is the risk of volatility in
asset management fees due to the impact of interest rate and market price movements on the fair

value of the assets held in the linked funds, on which investment management fees are based.

(c) Short-term insurance contracts

- No material interest rate risk exists for short term insurance liabilities, as they are not directly

sensitive to the level of market interest rates since they are undiscounted and contractually non-
interest-bearing.

(d) Interest rate swap and step up swap

- The Company entered into interest rate swap to obtaln economic benefit and step up swap, fixed

to ﬂoatlng interest, to manage its duration gap.
(e) Investment portfolio

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on the investment portfolio because any changes in
interest rates would affect the value of fixed interest debt investments carried at fair value which
are classified as fair value through profit and loss, and which may differ from corresponding
changes, if any, in the value of the liabilities. The company mitigates interest rate risk through its
asset liability management process.
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5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.5  Credit risk

_ vThe Company has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to

pay amounts in full when due. Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:
- reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities, ' ,

- amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid,

- amounts due from insurance contract holders,

- amounts due from insurance intermediaries,

- -investments in debt and equity securities,

- counterparty risk with respect to derivative transactions, and

' - bank balances.

The Company structures the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a

single counterparty, or groups of counterparty. Such risks are subject to an annual or more frequent
review. Limits on the level of credit risk are subject to approval from the Local Management
Investment Committee. ’

Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s
liability as a primary insurer. If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim for any reason, the Company
remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of reinsurers is

~considered on an annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalisation of any

contract and to ensure ongoing creditworthiness of the reinsurer.

v T_he‘maximum‘kcr'edit risk for financial assets recognised on the balance sheet is the carrying

amount less, where applicable, any provision for doubtful debts.
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- MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.5 Credit risk - continued
@) Analysis of underlying credit exposure:

Issue Credit ratings per Standard & Poor’s
AA+to A+to BBB+to - BB+to B+to Not

AAA AA- A- BBB- BB- B- . . _rated Total
D S : US$’000  US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000 US$000
As at 31 December 2016: ‘ ‘
Debt securities - o 1,516,869 1,083,551 2,637,050 1,424,519 9,213 1,682 146,751 6,819,635
Loans and receivables - - - - - - 721,998 721,998
Reinsurance assets - ; - - - - - - 579,318 579,318
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 26,406 26,406
Pledged bank deposits - - - - - - 358,078 358,078
"Fixed term bank deposits - - - - - - 130,451 - 130,451
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - 543,625 543,625
~ Total assets bearing credit risk 1,516,869 1,083,551 2,637,050 1,424,519 9,213 1,682 2,506,627 9,179,511
As at 31 December 2015:

. Debt securities : 1,652,363 884,999 2,362,842 900,560 12,708 239 106,521 5,920,232
Loans and receivables _ - - - - - - 685260 685,260
Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 513,372 - 513,372
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - 22,798 22,798

- Pledged bank deposits _ - - - - 8 - 323,023 © 323,023
Fixed term bank deposits - - - - - - - 40,000 40,000
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - 555415 - 555,415

= Total assets bearing credit risk 1,652,363 884,999 2,362,842 900,560 ~ 12,708 239 2,246,389 8,060,100
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MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

- 5.5 Creditrisk - continued

(i)  Collateral

At31.122016  At31.12.2015

S US$’000 . US$000 -
. Fair value of collateral held: : ‘ , '
 Under repurchase agreement - 99,407 -
Cash for derivative : ’ : : '

- Collar 4,824 471
- Forward currency contracts 3,166 ' -
- Interest rate swap : : 7,300 12,600
114,697 13,071

Repo k

 The Company entered into a Global Master Repurchase Agreement ("GMRA") with a financial

institution to be able to enter into repurchase transactions (agreements to sell securities and
repurchase them at a pre-defined price and on a pre-defined date, with a fee).

Pursuant to an Agency Agreement, the Company authorizes a fund manager to act as its agent to
arrange and administer the repurchase transactions within the parameters set forth in the
agreement. In consideration of the services provided, the Company agrees to pay the agent a fee
based on the notional amount of the repurchase transaction. For the balance outstanding as at 31
December 2016 is US$99,406,857, the transaction adheres to the guidelines and requirements

~-agreed to by all parties.

The s’ecurities sold under the transaction are marked to market daily, and the fund manager is
responsible for checking the valuation, monitoring the compliance of the securities, and

-controlling the margin calls.
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5.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINAN CIAL RISKS - continued

5.5 | Credit risk - continued

(i) Collateral - continued

The collateral is marked to market daily, and the fund manager is respon51b1e for checking the
Valuation momtorlng the compliance of the collateral, and controlling the margin calls.

56 | Price risk

“To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Company diversifies its -

portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done accordance with the limits set by the Company.

5.7  Currency risk

The Company monitors overall currency exposure and decides on hedging implementations
within the constraints of the mandates. Foreign currency exposure, arising from assets, liabilities
and derivatives is monltored regularly and hedged when deemed appropriate and to the extent
practicable.

" The Company operates in Hong Kong and issues Hong Kong dollar and United States dollar

denominated policies The Company s policy is to generally invest in assets denominated in the

same currencies and / or assets in foreign currencies hedged back to the currencies of the
“insurance liabilities, which mitigate the Company's foreign currency exchange rate risk. As at 31
- . December 2016, the majority of the Company's assets are denominated in United States dollars

and Hong Kong dollars. Since the Hong Kong dollars are currently pegged to the United States

~ dollars, the impact of exchange rate fluctuation is insignificant to the results of the Company.

Within the constraints of the investment mandates, the Company hedge its foreign currency

~ exchange rate risk using foreign exchange forward contracts in order to mitigate the impact of
- fluctuations in fair value of the investments as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The following table analyses the Company’s insurance and financial liabilities and the financial
assets backing these liabilities into relevant currency groupings based on the currency in which
these insurance and financial liabilities and financial assets are denominated. The financial assets

“in the following table include amounts recoverable from reinsurers. Where the value of the
~insurance and financial liabilities are linked to the value of its backing assets and the currency risk
is not borne by the Company, these insurance and financial liabilities and their backing assets are

not included in the analysis. The value of the insurance and financial liabilities that are linked to
the yalue of its backing assets amounted to US$3,009,286,969 (2015: US$2,828,035,065).
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5.7  Currency risk — continued

As at31 December 2016

5. MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS continued

(670,429)

Other
HK Dollars  US Dollars currencies Total
US$°000 US$2000 US$000 - US$000
Financial Assets 838,052 9,506,404 534,805 10,879,261
Insurance and financial liabilities  (3,248,128)  (5,931,647) (239,650) (9,419,425)
- Net on—balance‘ sheet position (2,410,076) 3,574,757 295,155 1,459,836
Off-balance sheet . _
net notional position* 1,095,070 (881,339) (210,772) 2,959
| (1,315,006) 2,693,418 84,383 1,462,795
- Asat 31 December 2015
’ - : Other :
HK Dollars US Dollars - currencies Total
US$’000 US$’OOO US$°000 US$°000
Financial Assets 327,898 ' 8,676,997 446,482 9,451,377
Insurance and financial liabilities = (1,833,013)  (6,206,687) (248,900) (8,288,600)
Net on-balance sheet pos1t10n - (1,505,115) - 2,470,310 197,582 1,162,777
Off-balance sheet ' , ‘
‘net notional position* 834,686 (703,480) (131,886) (680)
1,766,830 65,696 1,162,097

*Off- balance sheet net notional position represents the net notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to

currency movements.
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3.

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINAN CIAL RISKS - continued

5.8 Sensitivity analysis

The Company uses a number of sensitivity test-based risk management tools to understand the
volatility of earnings, the Volatility of its capital requirements and to manage its capital more
efficiently. Sensitivities to economic and operating experience are regularly produced to inform
the Company’s de0151on making and planmng process.

~ Some results of sen51t1V1ty testing for long-term business are set out below. For each sensitivity

test the impact of a reasonably possible change in a single factor is shown, with other assumptions

left unchanged.

Sensitivity factor

" (i) Interest rate and investment return

(ii) Equity market values

(iii) Worsening of mortality

(iv) Worsening’ of morbidity

Description of sensitivity factor applied

The impact of a change in market interest rates by
0.5% (e.g. current interest rate is 5%, the impact of an
immediate change to 4.5% and 5.5%). The test allows
consistently for similar changes to (i) investment
returns; (ii) movements in the market value of fixed
interest securities; and (iii) insurance and investment
liabilities.

The impact of a change in equity market values by 5%
The impact of a change in mortality assumption by

10% (e.g. current mortality rate is 5%, the impact of
an immediate change to 5.5%).

The impact of a change in morbidity assumption by

10% (e.g. current morbidity rate is 5%, the 1mpact of
an immediate change to 5.5%).

The following tables disclose details of the sensitivities for the relevant period:

Impact on profit after tax
- increase/(decrease) in profit
and shareholders’ equity

~ Year ended- Year ended
31.12.2016 - 31.12.2015
US$°000 US$°000
Assumed future return on debt securities + 0.5% (184,210) (103,906)
Assumed future return on debt securities - 0.5% , 21,279 (212,213)
“Assumed future equity securities return rate + 5% 34,183 27,014
Assumed future equity securities return rate - 5% (31,588) (26,272)
“Assumed mortality assumption +10% ‘ (88,851) (33,279)
Assumed morbidity assumption +10% (25,952) (55,020)
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5.'

MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE AND FINANCIAL RISKS - continued

5.9 Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a
going concern and to comply with capital requirements specified in the Insurance Companies
Ordinance, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

_ stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

‘In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
_ d1v1dends paid to shareholders or return capital to shareholders.

B ‘Cons1stent with other entities in the industry, the Company and the parent entity monitor capital
on the basis of the solveney ratio. This ratio is’ calculated as total capital and surplus divided by

minimum solveney margin. }
: At3l.12.2016 At3l.12.2015

US$’°000 US$°000
Capital and surplus (1nclud1ng unassigned surplus) - 1,459,622 1,166,185
M1n1mum solvency margin ‘ 392,286 346,8_17
Solvency ratio | 372% 336%

The solvency ratio is 372% (2015: 336%) which is above the regulatory requirement of 100%.

Investigations have been carried out into the extent of adequacy of assets to cover liabilities
- valued under different investment conditions. The test is done on an individual entity basis and

US$195,881,598 (2015: US$139,304,497) of resilience reserve is held in the Company.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

6.1 Fair value hierarchy

- The table analyses the financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation ‘method. The

different levels have been defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

e Level 2: fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. quoted prices in active
‘markets for similar financial instruments), or indirectly (i.e. valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are based on observable market data)

e Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which the inputs
are not based on observable market data
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6 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.1 Fair value hierarchy - continued

The carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date across
the above three levels of the fair value measurements hierarchy is presented in the following

tables:
At31.122016 Level 1 Level2  Level3 Total
: : US$000 Us$000 US$’000 - US$’000
Recurring fair value measurement
ASSETS ' o
Investment in subsidiaries - - S : '
-unlisted unit trusts i : 148,753 v 511,035 ' - 659,788
" Investment in associates :
-unlisted unit trusts _ - 53,953 - 53,953
Fihéncial assets at fair value through ‘
_ profit or loss:
Listed debt securities ‘
- Fixed rate - . : ’ : 3,514,808 2,807,334 - 6,322,142
- Floating rate : ‘ 509 11,815 - 12,324
Unlisted débt securifies
- Fixed rate 80,178 304,005 - 384,183
- Floating rate - 94,907 - 94,907
© Listed equity securities | 722,492 60,541 - 783,033
Uﬁlisted unit trust investments and others 1,868,044 211,580 578,407 2,658,031
* Private companies ’ v - : - 281,930 281,930
Private company debentures - - 6,079 6,079
» v v 6,334,784 - 4,055,170 866,416 11,256,370
Derivative financial instruments: . .
-Forward currency contracts o 9,435 - - 9,435
-Equity options - 5,594 - 5,594
-Interest rate swap - 11,377 - 11,377
' ’ 9,435 . 16,971 J - 26,406
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
~investment contracts » : 1,128,455 22,264 - 572,997 1,723,716
' DerivatiVe financial instruments:
-Forward currency contracts 6,476 - - 6,476
- Equity options ' - - - -
~Step up swap o - ) , - - -
~Interest rate swap : - 2,875 - 2,875
1,134,931 25,139 572,997' 1,733,067
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.1  Fair value hierarchy - continued

At31.12.2015

Recurring fair value measurement
ASSETS

Investment in subsidiaries

~unlisted unit trusts

Investment in associates
-unlisted unit trusts

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss: »

Listed debt securities -
- Fixed rate '
- Floating rate

Unlisted debt securities
- Fixed rate
- Floating rate

Listed equity securities
Unlisted unit trust investments and others

Private companies
Private company debentures

Derivative financial instruments:
-Forward currency contracts
-Equity options
-Interest rate swap

‘LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
-investment contracts

Derivative financial instruments:
-Forward currency contracts
- Equity options
_.=Step up swap
-Interest rate swap

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 - Total
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$ 000
124,430 342,223 - 466,653
- 51,525 - - 51,525
2,330,132 2,671,949 - 5,002,081
- 431 - 431
513,687 302,014 - 815,701
- 94,965 - 94,965
566,589 12,036 - 578,625
1,850,453 230,263 478,065 2,558,781
- - 291,234 291,234

. - 7,054 7,054
5385291 3,705,406 776,353 9,867,050
3,456 - - 3,456

- 5,136 - 5,136

- 14,206 - 14,206

3,456 19,342 - 22,798
1,169,644 16,383 601,262 1,787,289
4,136 - - 4,136
Co- 137 - - 137

- 47,151 - 47,151

- 2,032 - 2,032
1,173,780 65,703 1,840,745

601,262

As at 31 December 2016, there were US$395,200,550 (2015: US$152,419,382) transfers from Level

2 to Level 1 due to the market for identical bonds becoming active. There were US$132,964,821
. (2015: US$514,718,433) transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 due to the market for identical bonds

becoming inactive. The company’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value

hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur or change in circum:

caused the transfer.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.2 . Financial ‘instrument in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, 1ndustry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and

. those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length ba81s
- The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. '

» 6.3 Fmanc1a1 mstrument inLevel 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter -derivatives) is- determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques

maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on
“entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
~ the instrument is included in Level 2.

- Speciﬁc valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

-~ Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.
- Fair value is derived from the model based on current market parameters such as observable
y1e1d curve.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.4 | Financial instrument in Level 3

e , Fair value Valuation " Range
- Description . as at 31.12.2016  technique(s) Unobservable input (Weighted average)
: : - US$000 ‘
Unlisted unit trust investments =
and others: AR '
- Unlisted unit trust. -~ - 578,407 Net asset value n/a n/a
Private companies - 281,930 Net asset value .. n/a , ©n/a
Private company debentures 6,079 Discounted cash flow n/a - n/a

* The company has determined that (1) the reported net asset value represents fair value of unlisted

- unit trust investments (2) the company’s net asset value represent fair value of private companies

~ at the end of the reporting period.

As certain unlisted unit trust investments are backing the unit linked contracts, any change to the
fair valuation of these investments is retained by the policyholder. The valuation policies and

procedures for the funds are established by the fund managers or fund administrators based on the

framework disclosed in the prospectus. Prospectuses for each unit trust investment is obtained
from the fund managers and reviewed by management for appropriateness of fair valuation
against the Company’s accounting policies. Upon execution of a recent transaction, the fair value
of the transaction is utilised to validate the fair valuation of the net asset value statement obtained

* from the fund manager. Discussions with the fund managers are held on a periodic basis to go

over the high level performance of the fund to analyse changes in fair value measurements from
period to period. In case of a year end valuation not being available, the Company has carried out
certain additional procedures to assess a relevant fair valuation as at 31 December 2016.

For unlisted non-linked unit trust investments, valuation process controls ate obtained from fund
managers or fund administrators. Discussion of valuation processes and results are held between

- fund managers and investment team at least once very quarter. In the meeting, fund managers go

over major transactions or highlights of the past period and the potential investments. Investment

- performance are also presented and communicated with the members of the management

investment committee at regular meetings.
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6. .

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.4 Fihansial instrument in Level 3 — continued

The reconcﬂlatlon from beginning to endmg balance for the assets and liabilities that are
class1ﬁed as Level 3 is presented as follows: '

" Financial assets : Financial assets at
' ' ’ ‘ fair value through
profit or loss
- US$°000
At 1 January 2015 ‘ 498,674
Payment for purchases o 428,223
Proceeds from sales - ' ' - (83,282)
Transfer into level 3 during the year ' -
Transfer from level 3 to level 2 during the year - ’ (51,917)
Net total losses for the period recognised in comprehensive income
- Included in net realised and unrealised gains on investments (15,345)
At 31 December 2015 o ' - 776,353
Payment for purchases - 187,486

Proceeds from sales : ‘ (93,967)

-» Transfer into level 3 during the year

Transfer from level 3 to level 2 during the year- ‘ L -
Net total losses for the period recognised in comprehensive income

' - Included in net realised and unrealised gains on investments , (3,456)

At 31 December 2016 : , 866,416

Change in unrealised losses for 2016 recognised in comprehensive income

-Included in net realised and unrealised gains on investments (3,456)

As ﬂa}t 31 December 2016, there was US$Nil transfer from level 3 to level 2 because most

- subscriptions of the fund would be invested in the underlying investments and those investments

whose fair value is based on quoted market prices, involving valuation techniques where all the
model inputs are observable in the market. As at 31 December 2015, there was US$51,916,397
transfer from 1eve1 3 to level 2. ' .
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6.

FINANCIAL‘ INSTRUMENTS IN THREE LEVEL FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY - continued

6.4 - Information about Level 3 fair value measurement — continued

Financial liabilities _ Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
- US$°000

At 1 January 2015 , ; ' ' 340,626
Net movement in investment contract liabilities from contributions ;

and releases : 265,739

Transfer into level 3 during the year , : -

* Transfer from level 3 to level 2 during the year ' o (5,103)

At 31 December 2015 ' ' 601,262

‘Net movement in investment contract liabilities from contnbutlons

and releases : (28,265)
Transfer into level 3 during the year -

’ ‘Transfer from level 3 to level 2 during the year : -

At 31 December 2016 - o ' 572,997

~ Change in unrealised gains / (losses) for the period included in comprehensive i income
‘at 31 December 2016 ’ | -
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7.

INSURANCE PREMIUM REVENUE

Insurance premium revenue represents gross insurance premiums written from dlrect and
reinsurance accepted businesses, including contributions in respect of retirement business during

the year, as follows:

~ Yearended 31.12.2016

Long term business
General business

~ Retirement business

Year ended 31.12.2015

- Long term business

General business
Retirement business

Gross . Reinsurance ‘ Reinsurance Net Insurance
Premium Premium Premium Premium
Accepted Ceded - Revenue

US$ ©US$ US$ US$
2,028,850,750 35,047,182 (279,907,’057) 1,783,990,875
18,548,173 172,504 (57?092) 18,663,585
2,047,398,923 35,219,686  (279,964,149) 1,802,654,460
1,581,303,278 36,575,104  (140,592,158) - 1,477,286,224
14,736,563 143,682 (2,610,990) 12,269,255
78,599,346 : - - 78,599,346
1,674,639,187 36,718,786  (143,203,148) 1,568,154,825

The comparative balance includes the insurance premium revenue from discontinued operations.
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8.

INVESTMENTS

Investment income

~Interest income on debt securities
Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income on policy loans
“Other interest income
Exchange gains/ (losses)

Total interest income

Dividend from subsidiaries )
Dividend from equity securities
Other investment income

Total investment income -

Net realised gains/ (losses)
Financial assets designed at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

Net unrealised gains/ (IOSSes)
Financial assets designed at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

Total net realised and unrealised gains on investments

TOTAL

| INVESTMENT INCOME AND NET REALISED AND UNREALISED GAINS ON

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ US$
233,003,273 240,430,776
9,925,700 10,601,248
16,171,065 16,526,979
18,577,357 12,758,334
(1,252,059) (556,077)
276,425,336 279,761,260
70,922,443 172,581,530
34,647,904 30,301,118
22,677,766 21,925,405
404,673,449 504,569,313
141,320,749 284,154,293
(65,515,157) 34,547,757
75,805,592 318,702,050
9,307,224 (758,603,160)
48,065,786 (2,410,016)
57,373,010 (761,013,176)
133,178,602 (442,311,126)
537,852,051 62,258,187

The comparative balance includes the investment income and net realised and unrealised gains on

investments from discontinued operations.
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrrved at
after charging:

Auditors' remunerati'on
Directors' remuneration
. Depreciation -
Amortisation of intangible asset
Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Staff costs (note) -
,Pensmn costs — defined contribution plans (note)

- and after crediting:

~ Interest income on debt securities
- listed
- unlisted
Dividend income from subsidiaries
‘Dividend income’
- listed
= unlisted _
Interest income on policy loans
Interest income on secured mortgage and other loans
Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income from subsidiaries

Interest income from immediate holding company
- Other interest income
- Exchange losses

Year ended
31.12.2016
US$

969,131
-10,000

114,880

2,885,703
3,222

220,656,910
12,346,363
70,922,443

19,996,977

14,650,927

- 16,171,065
953
9,925,700

1,338,949
17,237,455
(8,820,734)

Year ended v
31.12.2015
US$

969,719
10,000
60,998

2,936,662

222,852,611
17,578,165
172,581,530

16,165,870
14,135,248
16,526,979
1,420
10,601,248
- 60

1,082,365
11,674,549
(27,036,313)

The comparative balance has included the components of profit before tax from discontinued

operations.

Note: Staff costs and pension costs for the current and prior year were borne and recharged to the
Company by an insurer subsidiary. The directors received unapportioned remuneration of
US$2,792,227 (2015: US$2,559,744) from the Company’s holding companies, fellow subsidiaries,
associates or any other company for the directors’ services to certain companies in the AXA
China Regron Group. Aggregated and unapportioned amount of top three highest-paid directors’

emoluments is US$2,802,227 (2015: US$2,559,744). Estimated money value of benefits other than
cash within directors’ emoluments include medical premium, group life premium, staff share options,

performance units and child education benefits.
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10.  TAXATION

The charge/(credit) comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
- Current tax on profits for the year
- Adjustments in respect of prior years

Overseas

- Current tax on proﬁts for the year
- Adjustments in respect of prior years
- Overseas withholding tax

Total current tax

- Deferred taxation (note 18):
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
Release of deferred tax assets previously recognized
- Adjustments in respect of prior years

Tetal deferred tax

Taxation

Year ended
31.12.2016
US$

15,990,891

(88,989)
4,711,364

20,613,266

496,723
3,005,065

3,501,788

24,115,054

Year ended
31.12.2015
US$

13,828,326

89,042
4,036,230

17,953,598

(1,829,673)
(84,728)

(1,914,401)

16,039,197

The comparative balance includes the taxation of discontinued operations of US$799,006.
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10.

11.

" TAXATION - _continued

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before taxation
Adjustments:

Profit from long term life business (note)
- Profit before tax for overseas branch included in
- profit from long term life business

Adjusted profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax
“rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%)

Tax on life insurance business in Hong Kong (note)

Tax effect of non-taxable income

- Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
~Tax losses - not recognised
- Effect of different tax rate of the branch

operating in other jurisdictions

- Under/ (Over) provision in prior year ;
Release of deferred tax assets previously recognized
- Overseas withholding tax

Taxation

Note:

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ USS$
342,301,004 355,193,264
(341,876,372) (3'48,900,054)
(7,957,697) (16,337,275)
(7,533,065) (10,044,065)
(1,242,956) (1,657,270)
15,314,976 13,971,000
(24,953) (1,242,884)
812,667 235,478
1,310,369 -
317,511 692,328
(88,989) 4,315
3,005,065 -
4,711,364 4,036,230
24,115,054

16,039,197

Under the Hong Korig Inland Revenue Ordinance, assessable profits frorﬁ the business of life

. insurance are deemed to be 5 percent of net premium income for the year.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
the year. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rate prevailing in the respective jurisdiction.

DIVIDENDS

Ordinary shares

- Interim, paid — US$0.15

(2015: US$0.34) per share

Extraordinary, paid — US$Nil
(2015: US$1.61) per share

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ US$
25,793,000 59,314,000
- 283,869,136
25,793,000 343,183,136
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12.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Career and
Production -~ Deferred
bonus commission Total
US$ US$ USs$
. COST R : .
At 1 January 2015 789,437 2,765,998 3,555,435
Exchange difference ; ‘ - 1,802 1,802
. Additions 3 ' v - 2,838,720 2,838,720
" Disposal : - (2,767,801) (2,767,801)
At 31 December 2015 789,437 2,838,719 3,628,156
Exchange difference - - (1,720) (1,720)
Additions . - - 1,841,177 1,841,177
_ Disposal (3,222) (2,837,000) (2,840,222)
At 31 December 2016 786,215 1,841,176 2,627,391
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2015 657,634 1,729,123 2,386,757
Exchange difference (86) 1,126 1,040
.. Charged for the year 127,271 2,809,391 2,936,662
Eliminated on disposal}s v - (2,767,801) (2,767,801)
At 31 December 2015 - 784,819 1,771,839 2,556,658
Exchange difference 3 -~ (1,073) (1,070)
Charged for the year 1,393 2,884,310 2,885,703
~ Eliminated on disposals - (2,837,000) (2,837,000)
Adjustment ' - - -
At 31 December 2016 786,215 1,818,076 2,604,291
NET BOOK VALUES , Co
At 31 December 2016 ’ - 23,100 23,100
| 4,618 1,066,880 1,071,498

- At 31 December 2015

Career bonus and production bonus are offered under an ‘Experience Hire Program’ by the
Company starting from 2009. The bonuses are then amortised on a straight line basis over 4
years.

Both career bonus and production bonus net of accumulated amortization is subjected to an
annual impairment assessment.
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13.  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14.

COST

At 1 January 2015
Exchange difference
Additions

‘At 31 December 2015
- Exchange difference

Additions

‘At 31 December 2016

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2015

- Exchange difference

Provided for the year

At 31 December 20 15
Exchange difference -

- Provided for the year

At 31 Dbecember 2016

'NET BOOK VALUE
- At 31 December 2016

-~ At 31 December 2015

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

- Unlisted shares, at cost

Unlisted unit trusts, at fair value
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Furnitufe,
Leasehold fixtures and
improvements =~ equipment
US$ US$
5,992,531 7,741,299
, 760 174 -
483,208 - 86,669
6,476,499 7,828,142
(1,000) (215)
- 165
6,475,499 7,828,092
5,983,734 7,734,820
. 754 170
49,071 11,927
6,033,559 7,746,917
(732) - (165)
96,583 18,297
6,129,410 7,765,049
346,089 63,043
442,940 81,225

At31.12.2016

Total
US$

13,733,830
934
569,877

14,304,641
(1,215)
165

14,303,591 -

13,718,554
' 924
60,998

13,780,476
(897)
114,880

13,894,459

409,132

524,165

At31.12.2015

US$ USS$
272,302,947 272,302,947
659,788,054 466,652,863
932,091,001 738,955,810
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14.  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Proportion of

nominal value of Number of
Place of Class of issued capital Number of issued
Name of company incorporation  -shares held held by the Company  shares held shares Principal activities

Directly Indirectly

AXA China Region Insurance - Hong Kong Ordinary = 100% - 19,940,000 - - 19,940,000 Insuranée underwriter
Company Limited o : - ordinary ordinary )
AXA Financial Planning - Hong Kong Ordinary = 100% - 1,034,000 1,034,000  Unit trust management
(Hong Kong) Limited _ ordinary ordinary services
AXA China Region Investment Hong Kong Ordinary  100% - 5,000 5,000 Distribution of
Services Limited ‘ ordinary ordinary securities
. : k services
AXA Partners Limited - Hong Kong Ordinary  100% - 4,410,000 4,410,000  Nominee services
- B : : ordinary ordinary
AXA Financial Services Hong Kong Ordinary  20% 40% 6,000,000 30,000,000 Trustee services
Trustees Limited - - ordinary ordinary
12,000,000
ordinary
(indirectly)
Percentage of Number of
. : : Place of Class of = units held Number of = units in
Name of unit trusts incorporation  shares held . (directly) units held issue . Principal activities
NegatiVe Basis Trades Fund France Class “A” 78.46% - 440,745 © 561,772 " Unit trust‘ )
AXA Unit Trusts — Pacific Fund Trust Hong Kong Class “A” 78.88% 2,417,592 3,065,002 Unit trust
AXA Unit Trusts — Currency & Bond Fund Hong Kong Ordinary 79.67% 402,706 505,473 Unit trust

"The financial statements of the subsidiaries have not been consolidated as the Company is a
subsidiary of AXA, which is incorporated in France and prepares consolidated financial
statements available for public use which comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards. These financial statements are obtainable at www.axa.com. '
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~15. - INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015
US$ US$

Unlisted unit trust, at fair value o 53,953,211 51,524,766

Particulars of the Company’s associates as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Percentage of Number of

- v " Place of Class of - units held Number of - units in
Name of unit trust ; ’ incorporation: shares held - (directly) units held issue Principal activities
AB 'Multi-Manag_er Hedge Fund Cayman Iéland_ Class “2” 27.89% 431,053 . 1,545,527 Unit trust
_AB Fund of Hedged Fund ‘ Luxembourg - Class “A” 39.22% 116,441 296,897 Unit trust

The investment in associates are not accounted for using the equity method as the ultimate
‘holding company, AXA, prepares consolidated financial statements available for public use which

comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards. These financial statements are
. obtainable at www.axa.com. ’

 Key financial informat_iOn of the Company’s associates are provided as follows:

At31.12.2016 At31.12.2015

US$ US$
Net assets ' | 186,746,965 130,455,974
Year ehded Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ US$
Profit for the year = | 549,094 - 16,179,781
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16.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

(a)  The Company manages certain investment portfolios on behalf of its group entities. Please
refer to note 30 for details. The following represents the Company’s own share in the investment

portfolios.

Fixed interest debt investments
Government
- - listed
" - unlisted
Others
- listed
- unlisted
Floating interest debt investments
~ Others
- Listed
- Unlisted
Other interest investments

- Listed equity shares
- Unlisted unit trust investments
Private companies
~ Private company debentures

. Total

- listed
- unlisted

Analysed as:
Current assets
“Non-current assets
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At fair value

through profit or loss
At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015
- US$ USS$
1,459,934,931 1,058,583,693
77,818,156 488,546,245
4,862,206,577 3,943,497,384
306,364,293 327,155,422
12,324,062 431,110
94,907,124 94,964,679
783,033,330 578,625,267
2,658,031,412  2,558,780,784
281,929,748 291,233,617
6,079,390 7,054,074
10,542,629,023 9,348,872,275

7,117,498,900
3,425,130,123

5,581,137,454
3,767,734,821

10,542,629,023

9,348,872,275

71,484,246

10,471,144,777

107,534,825
9,241,337,450
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16.  IN'VESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued
(b)  Interests in Structured Entities

In accordance with HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, a structured entity
(““SE”) is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative
tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual arrangements.

~ In assessing the significance of a SE for disclosure purposes, the Company considers the nature of

- the Company’s relationship with the SEs including whether they are sponsored by the Company.
In addition, the significance of the relationship with the SE to the Company is assessed including
consideration of factors such as the Company’s investment in the SE as a percentage of the
Company’s total assets, the Company’s aggregate investment return from the SE as a percentage
of the Company’s total revenue and the Company’s exposure to any other risks from its
involvement with the SE.

The Company has investment relationships with a variety of unlisted unit trusts and other entities
(““Other Entities”), which result from its direct investment in their debt or equity and which have
been assessed for control. This category includes, but is not limited to investments in money
market fund, fixed income fund, equity fund, balance fund, power and infrastructure, private
equity and real estate, organized as limited partnerships and limited liability companies. These
Other Entities are not sponsored by the Company. The Company’s maximum exposure to losses
as a result of its relationships with Other Entities is limited to its investment and amounts
committed to be invested but not yet funded. The income that the Company generates from these
Other Entities is recorded in investment income and net realised and unrealised gains/ (losses) on
investments. The Company provides no guarantees to other investors in these Other Entities
against the risk of financial loss.

For those Other Entities backing unit linked contracts, the Company retains legal title, however,
“returns from these are attributable to policy holders of the unit linked contracts. This category
* includes, but is not limited to investments in money matrket fund, fixed income fund, equity fund

and balance fund. The Company does not bear the risk associated with these assets.
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17. » LOANS

Policy loans

Secured mortgage loans
Loan to a fellow subsidiary
Other unsecured loans

Current
Non-current

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

US$ US$
196,153,427 203,229,738
147,498 163,384
16,318,601 16,328,496
11,953 12,044
212,631,479 219,733,662
212,624,555 219,710,457
23,205

6,924

The policy loans are charged at a rate as recommended by the Appointed Actuary based on the
- market interest rate. The interest rate is 8% per annum (2015: 8% per annum). The secured loans
' bear an interest at market rate. The unsecured loans are interest free.

The directors consider that the fair value of the loans approximately equals to the correspondmg

carrying value.

18. DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the year is as follows:

At 1 January 2015
~ Charge/(credit) for the year (note 10)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015
Charge/(credit) for the year (note 10)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2016
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644,383

Unrealised
investment Tax
gains/losses losses
US$ US$
872,677 (1,818,898)
- (725,496) (1,186,804)
569 (1,186)
147,750 (3,006,888)
496,723 3,005,065
(90) 1,823

Deferred
origination
costs
US$
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

.18. DEFERRED TAXAT_ION - continued

At 1 January 2015
Charge/(credit) for the year (note 10)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2015
Charge/(credit) for the year (note 10)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 20klv6 '

19.  SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of US$1 each:

Authori}sed:

Balance at 1 January 2015
- Increase of shares

" Balance at 31 December 2015
Increase of shares

Balance at 31 December 2016

Issued and fully paid:
Balance at 1 January 2015
New issues during the year

Balance at 31 December 2015
New issues during the year

‘Balance at 31 December 2016
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Accelerated
tax
depreciation Provisions Total
US$ US$ US$
(6,633) (10,686) (963,540)
(614) (1,487)  (1,914,401)
“4) ) (628)
(7,251) (12,180) (2,878,569)
- - 3,501,788
4 7 1,744
(7,247) (12,173) 624,963
Number of Share
shares capital
US$
244,000,000 244,000,000
244,000,000 244,000,000
244,000,000 244,000,000
175,782,800 175,782,800
175,782,800 175,782,800
175,782,800 175,782,800
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20.

INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT

CONTRACTS

Life insurance contracts
- with DPF

- Total insurance liabilities, gross -

- Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets -

 At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015

6,468,543,347

US$ US$
- QGross: v
Short-term insurance contracts o
- unearned premiums 147,066 6,963,912
- unexpired risk provision 29 1,457,030

5,851,724,293

- without DPF 2,074,468,815 1,760,023,001
" Investment contracts with DPF 150,625,185 96,308,518
7,716,476,754

8,693,784,442

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

USS$ US$

Recoverable from reinsurers:
Short-term insurance contracts R

- unearned premiums - 198 1,047,257

- unexpired risk provision C- -
Life insurance contracts ‘ :

- with DPF 383,226,341 309,437,422

- without DPF 144,616,939 168,587,912
Total reinsurer’s share of liabilities (included in

reinsurance assets) 479,072,591
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" 20, INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS - continued

At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015

. US$ US$

Net: s a
Short-term insurance contracts ’

- unearned premiums IR . . -146,868 5,916,655,
- - unexpired risk provision 29 1,457,030
Life insurance contracts o | | |

- with DPF 6,085,317,006  5,542,286,871

- without DPF : o 1,929,851,876 1,591,435,089
Investment contracts with DPF ; : 150,625,185 96,308,518
Total insurance liabilities, net 8,165,940,964 7,237,404,163

Financial liabilities — investment contracts and reinsurance assets

- At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015

US$ US$
Gross: ’ , ‘ :
Investment contracts without DPF v 1,723,716,048 1,787,288,605
Recoveréble from reinsurers:
Investment contracts without DPF - -
Net: '
Inyestment contracts without DPF 1,723,716,048 1,787,288,605
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20.

INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS - continued

" (a)  Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and

* sensitivity analysis

Process used to decide on assumptions

For long-term insurance contracts, prudent mortality assumptions and lower than regulatory

maximum interest rates are used to determine the liabilities. These assumptions are reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure the assumptions meet the regulatory requirements and the liabilities remain

o adequate

The assumptions used for these insurance contracts are as follows:

L Mortahty

An appropriate mortahty table based on the Company’s experience is chosen depending on the type
of contract.” A margin for prudence is then added to these assumptions. For ACRIB policies not
transferred from AXA (Hong Kong) Company Limited (formerly known as AXA (Hong Kong)
Life Insurance Company Limited), the mortality assumption currently used is 110% (2015: 115%)).
For ACRIB policies transferred from AXA (Hong Kong) Company Limited in 2012, the mortality
assumption currently used is 1 10% (2015 115%)

e Morbidity
- Prudent rates of incidence and recovery are derived from industry and company experience studies.
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20.

‘ INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT

CONTRACTS contmued

(a) Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptlons change in assumptions and
sensitivity analysis - continued

e  Valuation interest rate
The regulatory maximum interest rate is determined for each product group. This is the weighted
average of the yield on long term government bonds for the currency matching the liabilities and

" 97.5%of the weighted average yield on assets, where yield means redemption yield for fixed income

securities and income yield for other assets. The product grouping of the valuation interest rates was

- reviewed and implemented in 2016, whereby the policies are segregated into 5 product groups across

2 currency groups for Hong Kong policies, 5 product groups for Macau policies and Refundable
Hospitalsurance (“HSR”) product group. A set of valuation interest rates are determined for each
group based on the assets assigned to each group. The valuation interest rates selected are as follows
and are equal to or lower than the regulatory maximum interest rates required for each group:

" Valuation Interest Rate as at 12.31.2016

CRIB (HK) Non HKD ‘ VIR
Group 1 - 3.3%%
Group 2 : 3.29%
Group 3 3.09%
Group 4 o 2.94%
Growp5 ’ 2.11%
CRIB (HK) HKD v VIR
Group 1 : , 3.22%
Group 2 : 2.82%
Group 3 S 2.76%
Growp 4 2.62%
| Group 5 s 2.20%
CRIB (MA) VIR
Group 1 . ' 3.05%
Group 2 ’ , 3.04%
Group 3 3.04%
Group 4 ' 2.72%
Group 5 2.11%
| CRIB (HSR) 0.96% |
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20. ~ INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT |
CONTRACTS - continued

(a) © Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and
sensitivity analysis - continued

* Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2015

‘CRIB (HK) Non-HKD ' VIR
Group 1 4.03%
Group 2 : _ S 3.86%
Grouwp 3 - 3.44%
Group 4 _ ' 2.47%
Group 5 - 1.76%
CRIB (HK) HKD VIR-
Growp ! - ' - 2.78%
Group 2 ‘ _ 2.78%
Group 3 2.78%
‘| Group 4 2.23%
Group 5 - 1.56%
CRIB (MA) VIR
Group 1 . 3.26%
Growp?2 - -3.44%
Group 3 2.83%
Group 4 2.51%
Group 5 ' 1.73%
| CRIB (HSR) 0.96% |

- The policy reserves adopted for HKFRS are the same as those determined in accordance with the
requirements of the HKICO. This method complies with HKFRS 4 because insurance, or investment
contracts with DPF, are already subject to a de facto liability adequacy test, since the HKICO
specifies that all reserves must be prudent.

Change in assumptions

The valuation mortality rate updated to 110% (2015: 115%) of best estimate mortality rate during the

- year. The best estimate mortality rate in respect of the National Life business is 69% of HKAO1
(adjusted) (2015: 69% of HKAO1) for female and 65% of HKAO1 (adjusted) (2015: 69% of HKAO1)
for male during the year. The best estimate mortality rate in respect of the business transferred from
AXA (Hong Kong) Company Limited is 70% of HKAO1 (adjusted) (2015: 75% of HKAO1) for
female and 60% of HKAO1 (adjusted) (2015: 65% of HKAO1) for male during the year. The best
estimate mortality rate in respect of other life business is 60% of HKAO1 (adjusted) (2015: 60% of
HKAO01) for female and 50% of HKAO1 (adjusted) (2015: 60% of HKAO1) for male during the year.
The impact of this change was a US$70 million decrease in reserves at 31 December 2016.
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20. INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS continued -

(a) ~ Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and
sensitivity analysis — continued

The valuation interest rates by product group for insurance contracts with DPF, insurance contracts

o without DPF and riders products, were as above. The impact of this change was a US$21 million

increase in reserves at 31 December 2016.

Sensitivity analysis

Investment return:

~ Gains on equity investments directly increase reported profit. Likewise, falls in the value of
equities lead to a corresponding reduction in reported profit. '

Changes in the value of fixed interest assets are partlally offset by changes in the Value of
l1ab1ht1es

- There are limits to the offset between asset and liability value changes due to the impact of other
statutory regulations. The limits effectively put a floor on the value of liabilities.

" The following valuation interest rates are used in the sensitivity analysis:
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| 20. INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS - continued

(a)  Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and
sensitivity analysis — continued

Assumed market return on debt securities + 0.5%

Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2016

CRIB (HK) Non-HKD - VIR
Group 1 - 3.69%
Group 2 : ' , 3.62%
Group 3 B ~ » 3.48%
Group 4 : : 3.20%
Group 5 2.61%
CRIB (HK) HKD VIR
Groupl - 3.43%
| Group 2 o 3.05%
Group3 - 3.01%
Group4 2.82%
Group 5 , 2.59%
CRIB (MA) - VIR
Group 1 , - 3.2%
Group2 = , 3.30%
Group 3 3.34%
Group 4 - 3.14%
Group 5 . 2.50%
Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2015 _
CRIB (HK) Non-HKD VIR
Group 1 _ : ’ ' 4.30%
Group 2 ' 4.23%
Group 3 o 3.79%
Group 4 2.95%
| Group5 , - 2.14%
CRIB (HK) HKD VIR
Group 1 - _ 3.00%
Group 2 : } 3.01%
| Group 3 ‘ 3.14%
Group 4 . : 2.72%
Group 5 v 1.92%
CRIB (MA) ’ VIR
Group 1 - 3.50%
Group 2 : 3.73%
Group 3 S 3.29%
Group 4 o 3.00%

Group5 - 2.12%
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'20; INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
“CONTRACTS - continued

(a)  Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and
sensitivity analysis — continued '

Assumed market return on debt securities — 0.5%

Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2016

| CRIB (HK) Non- HKD - VIR
Group 1 3.09%
Group 2 ' ' 2.96%
Group 3 o 2.66%
Group 4 ‘ - ' 2.46%
Group 5 S ' ‘ 1.72%
CRIB (HK) HKD VIR
Group 1 2.97%
Group 2 ' 2.58%
Group 3 ' 2.51%
Group4 2.17%
Group 5 : - 1.81%
CRIB (MA) VIR
Group 1 : 2.81%
Group 2 y a - 2.76%
Group 3 ‘ ' 2.65%
Group4 - o S 2.23%
Group 5 . 1.72%
Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2015
CRIB (HK) Non-HKD VIR -
Group 1 , 3.76%
Group 2 o . 3.50%
Group3 - : } , 3.04%
Group 4 1.99%
Group 5 - 1.37%
CRIB (HK) HKD VIR
Group 1 ' ' 2.54%
Group 2 - ' -~ 2.54%

| Group 3 2.13%
Group 4 1.75%
Group 5 ‘ 0.97%
CRIB (MA) VIR
Group 1 . 3.03%
Group 2 _ ' - 3.16%
Group 3 - 2.30%
Group 4 : 2.03%
Group 5 ‘ 1.33%
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20. INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS continued

(a) Long—term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and
sensitivity analysis — continued
Assumed equity securities market value + 5%
* . Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12. 2016
| CRIB (HK) Non-HKD VIR

Group 1 _ , 3.39%
Group?2 . - _ 3.29%
Group3 ‘ _ - 3.09%
Group4 : 2.94%
Group 5 - ' 2.11%
CRIB (HK) HKD ' VIR
Group 1 3.22%
Group2 - o 2.82%
Group 3 . 2.76%
Grouwp4 . . 2.62%
Group5 - 2.20%
CRIB (MA) ' : VIR
Group 1 S 3.05%
Group 2 3.04%
Group 3 3.04%
| Group 4 e ~ 2.72%
Group 5 _ 2.11%
Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2015
CRIB (HK) Non-HKD VIR
Group 1 - ‘ : - 4.03%
Group 2 S 3.86%
Group3 . , : 3.44%
Group 4 ' : 2.47%
Group 5 1.76%
CRIB (HK) HKD ' VIR
Group 1 v - 2.78%
Group 2 ‘ 2.78%
Group 3. ' 2.78%
Group 4 ‘ 2.23%
Group 5 : ' 1.56%
‘| CRIB (MA) VIR
Group 1 : : I ‘ 3.26%
Group 2 3.44%
Group3 2.83%
Group 4 o 2.51%
Group 5 1.73%
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20. | INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
CONTRACTS - continued

(a) - Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and
- sensitivity analysis — continued
Assumed equity securities market value —5%
* Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2016 o
CRIB (HK) Non-HKD - VIR

Group 1 3.39%
Group 2 : 3.29%
Group3 ’ 3.09%
Group 4 2.94%
Group 5 2.11%
CRIB (HK) HKD : ' VIR
Group 1 o 3.22%
Group 2 2.82%
Group 3 : 2.76%
Group 4 : 2.62%
Group 5 | 2.20%
CRIB (MA) VIR
Group 1 o 3.05%
Group 2 S : 3.04%
Group 3 3.04%
Group 4 - o 272%
Group 5 = = 2.11%
Valuation Interest Rate as at 31.12.2015

| CRIB (HK) Non-HKD . VIR
Group 1 4.03%
Group 2 3.86%
Group 3 _ 3.44%
Group 4 2.47%
Group 5 , 1.76%
CRIB (HK) HKD VIR
Group 1 , , Lo 2.78%
Group2 ‘ 2.78%
Group 3 2.78%
Group 4 2.23%
Group-5 ' 1.56%
CRIB (MA) , ' VIR
Group 1- ‘ 3.26%
Group 2 3.44%
Group 3 2.83%
Group 4 : 2.51%
Group 5 ' v 1.73%
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20. IN SURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
' CONTRACTS — continued

“(a)  Long-term and short-term insurance contracts — assumptions, change in assumptions and
sensitivity analysis - continued

Mortality / morbidity:

Improvements in mortality and/or morbidity lead to reduced incidence of claims and higher

profits. Likewise, deterioration in these factors will reduce profits. However, various reinsurance

arrangements are in place to control the impact of large individual claims and claims arising from
- catastrophic events.

(b) Movement in insurance liabilities

Short term insurance contracts (gross)

~ Atend of year :

-88 -

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ . US$
At beginning of year 8,420,942 8,516,619
_Premiums written during the year 489,756 16,139,219
Premiums earned during the year (7,306,602) (16,235,845)
‘(Decrease)/mcrease in unexpired rrsk provision (1,457,001) 949
At end of year 147,095 8,420,942
* Long term insurance contracts with DPF (gross) ;
R Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ - US$
At beginning of year 5,851,724,293 5,615,696,986
- Valuation premiums received 699,501,667 627,994,464
Interest credited 172,483,284 159,480,490
Impact of change in assumptions 18,190,165 (167,803,289)
Impact of change in methodology o - -
Change in resilience reserve ‘ 45,573,316 (51,462,530)
Release in reserve on claims, surrenders and maturities (318,929,378) (332,181,828) -

6,468,543,347

5,851,724,293
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20. INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT
' - CONTRACTS - continued

(b) Movement in insurance liabilities — continued

Long term insurance contracts without DPF (gross)

Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
USS$ USS$
At beginning of year 1,760,023,001  1,629,099,942
- Valuation premiums received , 456,786,898 373,725,918
Premiums written during the year , ‘ : 153,518,423 109,051,391
Premiums earned during the year : (156,772,210) (110,011,863)
Interest credited . 14,628,365 13,866,932
Impact of change in assumptions , ' (29,975,162) 19,796,947
Impact of change in methodology } - : -
- Change in resilience reserve ' ‘ 11,002,367 (25,648,652)
Release in reserve on claims, surrenders v A
- and maturities and unit appreciation/depreciation (134,742,867)  (249,857,614)
At end of year R 2,074,468,815 1,760,023,001
Investment contract liabilities with DPF (gross) , ' :
: Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12. 2015
USS$ : - US$
At beginning of year =~ 96,308,518  1,247,427,093
Divestiture of MPF/ORSO businesses ‘ = (1,143,138,485)
Valuation premiums/contributions received 35,145,523 109,094,664 -
Interest credited » : ’ 3,024,867 2,006,321
Impact of change in assumptions ‘ 6,061,780 (1,697,413)
Impact of change in methodology - | -
Change in resilience reserve - 8,270,483 (10,290,181)

- - Change in reserve provision in excess of account balance for
- Class G of long term business
- Release in reserve on claims, surrenders and maturities,
and unit apprec1at10n/depre01at1on : 1,814,014 (45,872,685)

At end of year 150,625,185 96,308,518

(61,220,796)
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20. ~ INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT

- CONTRACTS - continued

‘ (b)  Movement in insurance liabilities — continued

Investment contract Habilities without DPF (gross)

At beginning of year

Divestiture of MPF/ORSO businesses

Premiums/contributions received

Interest credited

Impact of change in assumptions

Impact of change in methodology

‘Change in resilience reserve

Release in reserve on claims, surrenders and maturities,
- and unit appreciation/depreciation '

‘At end of year -
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Year ended
31.12.2016
- US$

1,787,288,605

236,591,895

(104,487)

727,803

(300,787,768)

Year ended
31.12.2015 -
US$ -

1,405,521,882
(75,785,516)

635,216,566 -
14,476,258

1,133,683

©(193,274,268)

1,723,716,048

1,787,288,605
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~ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

20.

INSURANCE LIABILITIES AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES FOR INVESTMENT

CONTRACTS - continued

(c)  Movement in recoverable from reinsurers

Short term insurance contracts

At beginﬁing of year

- Increase in period
Release in period -

At end of yéar

Long term insurance contracts

At beginning of year
Interest credited

- Impact of change in assumptions

Impact of change in methodology
Impact of change in reinsurance arrangements
Change due to claims, surrenders, maturities and others

At end of year

Investment contracts without DPF

At beginning of year
Premiums/contributions ceded

- Interest credited

Change due to claims, surrenders and maturities

At end of year

-91 -

Year ended Year ended
USS$ US$
1,047,257 1,045,503
34,094 2,610,990
(1,081,153) (2,609,236)
198 1,047,257
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ USS$
478,025,334 488,429,644
9,570,184 9,152,208
43,618,928 (40,523,603)
21,167,230 21,180,066
(24,538,396) (212,981)
527,843,280 478,025,334
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ US$
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21..  CLAIMS PAYABLE

Gross:

Long term business

Claims admitted but not paid - life and annuity business
- Claims incurred but not reported

General business
- Claims reported but not paid
Claims incurred but not reported

Current
Non-current

Net:
. Long term business

Claims admitted but not paid - life and annuity business

Claims incurred but not reported

General business
- Claims reported but not paid
Claims incurred but not reported

- Current
~'Non-current
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At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

US$ US$
37,166,399 31,534,782
30,388,636 21,959,244

9,369,044 11,154,842

30,700,402 27,699,843

107,624,481 92,348,711
107,624,481 92,348,711

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

US$ US$
(11,072,511) 26,078
30,388,636 21,959,244
7,409,213 9,486,041
29,424,168 26,578,150
56,149,506 58,049,513
56,149,506 58,049,513
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22.

23.

24,

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - INVESTMENT CONTRACTS

Financial liabilities — investment contracts represent the amount which the policyholders of
investment contracts without DPF are entitled to as at the balance sheet date. The fair values,
determined based on the fair value of underlying financial assets and derivatives at the balance
sheet date approximate to the corresponding carrying amounts.

Finanmal liabilities — investment contracts of US$1,723,716,048 (2015: US$1 787,288,605) are

e current 11ab111tres

PENSIONS - DEF INED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

: The pensions- deﬁned contribution plans for the current and prior years were borne by an insurer
sub51d1ary :

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

- Other financial assets
- The amounts due from group companies are unsecured, non interest bearing and due on demand.

- The insurance receivables, debtors and amounts due from group companies at the balance sheet date

are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoveries.

All of these balances are classified as current assets.

None of these financial assets is either past due or impaired.

Other ﬁnancia_l liabilities

The amounts due to group companies are unsecured, non interest bearing and due on demand.

The insurance payables creditors and amounts due to group compames are subsequently measured at

- amortised cost using the effective interest method

The directors consider the carrying values of the above items approximately equal to their fair
values.

All of these balances are classified as current liabilities.
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25,

~ EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

' AXA SA STOCK OPTION PLAN

Certain eligible employees of the Group have been granted options to snbscribe for shares at fixed
prices in AXA SA, the ultimate holdlng company of the Company, under the AXA SA Stock
Optron Plan.

The grantee may exercise the option in accordance with the following schedule:

- e 1/3 of the options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the second anniversary of the

grant date - :

e 2/3 of the options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the third annrversary of the
grant date :

o Al optrons granted are vested and exer01sable on or after the fourth anmversary of the grant
date

For the 2012 plan and before, a performance condition is applied for Stock Option grant more
than 5 000: the last tranche when vested will become exercisable only if the AXA share price has
performed at least as well as the EuroStoxx Insurance Index either since the grant date or over the
last three year perlod ~

For the 2013 Plan, the performance condition is applied to the last third of the grant and will

‘ become exercisable as follows:

e If the performance of the AXA share is equal to 75% of the performance_ of the Eurostoxx

- Insurance Index over the same period, 50% of the options will be exercisable

o If the performance of the AXA share is equal to 100% of the performance of the Eurostoxx

- Insurance Index over the same period, 100% of the options will be exercisable
¢ Ifthe performance of the AXA share range between 75% and 100% of the performance of the
Eurostoxx Insurance Index over the same period, the number of options exercisable will vary
proportronately from 50% to 100%

S1nee 2014 Stoxx Insurance Index (SXIP) replaces EuroStoxx Insurance Index and a new vesting
sehedule applies to the stock option grants:

o . 1/3 of the options granted are vested and exerc1sab1e on or after the third anmversary of the
grant date

e 2/3 of the options. granted are vested and exercisable on or after the fourth anniversary of the
grant date v

e All options granted are vested and exercisable on or after the fifth anniversary of the grant

date.

The exercise price of the stock options ranged from Euro 9.76 to Euro 33.78 with the average
remaining anniversary of two to four years of grant date.
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- 25,

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS - continued

AXA SHAREPLAN

‘Under the AXA'Shareplan, AXA offers employees of the AXA group opportunity to invest and
- hold units in funds in this shareplan which in turn hold AXA shares. This shareplan enables such
' employees to purchase AXA shares indirectly through the funds at fixed dlscounts to AXA share

prices.

| INTERNATIONAL PERFORMANCE SHARES PLANS »

Since 2013 the Performance Unit Plan is replaced by Internat1ona1 Performance Share Plan
granted by AXA SA.

Under International Performance Share Plan, selected officers are initially granted a certain

number of performance shares at the beginning of the 3-year vesting period. The rate of
achievement of the performance targets as assessed by AXA at the end of the performance period
is used to determine the number of AXA shares acquired in respect of the Performance Shares
(the “Performance Shares Conversion Rate”). The Performance Shares Conversion Rate shall be

~ determined according to the rate of performance target achievement:

o 0 performance shares conversion rate if targets achievement 0%

-~ o1 performance shares conversion rate if targets achievement 100%

o 1.3 performance shares conversion rate if targets achievement > or = 130%

Shares will be delivered at settlement. The number of acquired AXA shares will be equal to the

number of Performance Shares definitively vested.

- Since 2014 grant until 2016 grant, International Performance Shares have a 4-year vesting period

consisting of a 3-year performance period and 1-year deferral period before effective acquisition

“of the AXA shares that can.be sold immediately.

Only 2014 International Performance Shares grant is specific as the 2014 plan has been split in -
two as follows:

e  50% of the grant under the 3-year vesting period
e 50% under the 4 year vesting period
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25.

~ EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS - continued

AXAMILES

In 2007, the AXA SA Group announced a worldwide initiative as part of the Ambition 2012 strategy,
known as AXA Miles, which aims to make every AXA employee a shareholder. Every eligible
employee was awarded 50 AXA Miles in July 2007, which convert into shares in the global AXA -
Group in July 2011.  AXA Miles are a gift to employees that reflect our confidence that employees
will do their best to contribute towards achieving the goals of Ambition 2012 and our desire for

: employees to share in the success of the Company

As at 1 July 2007, there were 892 eligible employees providing services to the Company and

- other group companies, resulting in a total grant of 44,600 AXA Miles. In July 2011, all granted

AXA Miles in 2007 were vested by eligible employees and have been converted to shares.

In 2012, AXA Group has announced the grant of 50 AXA Miles to all AXA Group employees.
Every eligible employee was awarded 50 AXA Miles in March 2012, which convert into shares at
the end of the acquisition period in March 2016. Out of the 50 AXA Miles, 25 have been granted

- without any particular conditions at grant date and 25 have been actually granted in March 2013 as
performance conditions have been reached at that date.

In March 2016, all granted AXA Miles in 2012 were vested by eligible employees and have been

converted o AXA shares
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25.  EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS - continued

The following tables disclose details of the relevant share options held by employees of the
- Company and movements in such holdings during the year:

Number of units per plan type

AXA AXA ,
SA Stock - Performance AXA
Option Plan ~ Unit Plan Miles
Outstanding at 1 January 2015 _ 487,183 221,533 100
Granted during the year : ' 47,271 42,793 -
Increase due to new appointments 175,393 18,100 -
- Adjustment (due to performance
Conditions / other reason) - 5,111 -
Exercised during the year (96,230) (34,184) -
- Decrease due to resignation/withdrawal (forefeited) (299,625) (111,649) -
Outstanding at 31 December 2015 v 313,992 141,704 100
Granted during the year: : 53,276 35,835 -
Increase due to new appointments - - -
- Adjustment (due to performance _
Conditions / other reason) (82,915) (45,796) ' -
Exercised during the year (10,500) (31,876) (100)
~ Decrease due to resignation/withdrawal (forefeited) - - -

‘Outstanding at 31 December 2016 - 273,853 99,867 -

The expenses arising from equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments during the year
relate to options granted to certain eligible employees for services provided to the Company and
other group companies. Accordingly, the entire cost of these options, representing the
~amortisation of the relevant share-based plans for the period up to 31 December 2016 of
US$2,758,151 (2015: US$1,927,072), was absorbed by an intermediate holding company.
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26

| 27,

‘CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
 Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not yet incurred is as
follows: ‘ ‘
At31.12.2016 At31.12.2015
Us$ US$
Unlisted unit trust investments : ' 123,750,959 164,881,497
* LEASE COMMITMENTS

At‘ the balance sheet date, the Branch had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015

| | US$ US$
‘Within one year | | 1,019,718 262,566
1In the second to fifth year inclusive : 169,020 5,784
‘ ' ' 1,188,738 268,350

'Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Branch for certain of its office

~ premises. Leases are negotiated on a two-year term.
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28.  ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH'EQUIVALENTS
At31.12,2016 At31.12.2015

‘ ; US$ USS$
Deposits with banks
Fixed term 488,528,507 363,022,515
Current accounts : - 543,620,085 555,410,617
Cash - ' R . 4,447 4,450
- 1,032,153,039 918,437,582
Less: ’ :
- Pledged bank deposits (note 31) B (358,077,928) (323,022,515)
Fixed term bank deposits , : '
with maturity over three months (130,450,579) (40,000,000)

543,624,532 555,415,067

Deposits with banks represent cash at current accounts with banks and deposits placed with
various banks with terms up to 3 years with interest rate up to 3.30% per annum (2015: 3.855%
per annum)

The dlrectors consider the carrying values of the above items approx1mately equal to their fair
values.

29.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
| (a): Financial risk management

 The Company enters into financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for
hedging purposes. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the policies approved by the
Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of financial der1vat1ves
Comphance with pohc1es and exposure limits is reviewed on a continuous basis.

(b) S1gn_1ﬁcant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria of
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which revenues and expenses are
recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

(c)' » Derivatives‘ B
The Company uses derivatives as part of the normal investment management procedures.
- Derivatives are principally used as an effective alternative to physical assets in order to achieve a

desired level of total exposure to various asset classes, and as a means to hedge against market
movements.
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, 29’. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

At 31 December 2016

Assets Liabilities
USS$ US$
Forward currency contracts 9,435,264 6,476,168
Interest rate swap a . 11,376,690 2,874,982
~ Equity options S ~ L 5,594,425 -
Step up swap ; ' ; - -
L | | 26,406,379 9,351,150
At 31 December 2015
Assets Liabilities
US$ US$
Forward currency contracts - 3,456,148 4,136,419
Interest rate swap = ; ‘ 14,206,699 2,032,130
Equity options 5,135,574 137,309
Step up swap : _ - 47,150,554
| 22,798,421 53,456,412
Contr_éctual or
notional amounts
At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015
USS$ US$
Forward currency contracts - bought 2,008,883,125 1,581,726,768
- 'sold (2,005,924,029) (1,582,407,039)
: Equity options - long ' 329,085,669 296,747,460
= _ - short : - (17,694,553)
Step up swaps - long A - 300,000,000
- Interest rate swaps - long 204,100,000 298,900,000
- short (349,500,000)  (289,900,000)

Derwatwes held by the Company are valued on a fair value basis, which involves the calcula‘uon
- and reco gmtlon of unreahsed gains and losses on all current positions.

- 100 -



- 30.

AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

29.

31.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

There are four major types of risks inherent in derivatives, these are:
o Market risk — the risk of loss due to a change in market conditions

o Liquidity risk — the risk that a transaction in a particular physical asset or derivative could
have a detrimental effect on its pr1ce for example in the extreme, it may not be possible to
- sell the security

e Credit risk — the risk that a loss will be incurred if a counterparty defaults on a contract

e Operat10na1 risk — the risk of losses occurring as a result of inadequate systems and
control human error or management failure :

‘Thev vComp'any has a Derivatives Policy which describes the objectives, authorisation and

. conditions of uses, counterparty requirements, and operating procedures in order to manage the
risks inherent in derivatives. Market risk is controlled through a process of setting exposure limits
.“to-various asset classes and exposure limits to particular holdings within an asset class.

NET ASSETS HELD ON BEHALF OF FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company manages a combined non-linked investment portfolio of "approximately
US$8,796,411,701 (2015: US$7,550,994,991) which are recorded in the name of the Company in

~accordance with the deed of trust dated 13 July 2009 entered with three of its subsidiaries.

Included in this portfolio are investments (net of derivative liabilities) held on behalf and for the
benefit of several Hong Kong-based insurers namely AXA Wealth Management (HK) Limited
(an aggregate amount of 2016:US$23,061,560, 2015:US$21,737,906) and AXA China Region
Insurance Company Limited (an aggregate amount of 2016: US$321,758,648, 2015:
US$232,188,785) in the AXA China Region Group. The financial statements disclose the

“remaining balance of US$8,451,591,493 (2015: US$7,297,068,300) which is held for the benefit

of the Company

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Thé Company's Macau Branch has pledged its bank deposits of US$358 million (2015: US$323

‘million) to Autoridade Monetdria ¢ Cambial de Macau as a guarantee in respect of the required
- technical reserves.:
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32,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company entered into the followmg major transactions with related parties:

- Year ended Year ended
Notes - 31.12.2016 31.12.2015
USS$ USS$
Reinsurance premiums to fellow subsidiaries a (276,385,271) - (495,422,733)
Reinsurance recoveries from fellow subsidiaries a 22,713,980 120,000,793
Reinsurance commissions from fellow subsidiaries ~ a 15,742,939 - 13,484,781
Reinsurance premiums from fellow subsidiaries b 35,047,182 36,575,104
Reinsurance commissions to a fellow subsidiaries b (2,156,028). (2,254,974)
‘Reinsurance recoveries to fellow subsidiaries b (4,805,748) - (1,180,255)
Investment charges paid to a fellow subsidiary c (10,490,580) (10,098,797)
Interest income from subsidiaries d ‘ - 60
Interest income from immediate holding company e 1,338,949 1,082,365
Allocation of management expenses from a ‘
subs1d1ary : f

(126,837,648) (130,746,923). ,

(a) The amounts relate to a reinsurance ceded arrangement made with fellow sub51d1ar1es in
the normal course of business.

(b) The amounts relate to the reinsurance accepted arrangements made with related group
companies/fellow subsidiaries including a new reinsurance treaty with'a fellow subsidiary
for an accident and health product with fully refundable features. Commissions are paid
and received on such arrangements. All reinsurance agreements are entered into in the
normal course of business.

() The investment charges were made to a fellow subsidiary for the provision of the
~ investment services throughout the year based on the size of the investment portfolios.

(d) The loan granted to the nominee services subsidiary bears 1nterest at Hong Kong prime
rate calculated ona da11y basis.

-(e) The ﬂoating rate of a debenture of HK$400 million and the floating rate of a debenture of

HK$336 million transferred from AXA (Hong Kong) Company Limited on 31 December
2012, issued by the immediate holding company were unsecured and bearing interest at
the rate of 0.96% (on or before 7 June 2016: 0.75%) per annum above HIBOR. The
debenture will be fully redeemed on or before 6 June 2021. -

® Certain overhead costs borne by the group companies were allocated to the Company for
sharing the common services and facilities on time spent basis.
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32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

()

| "

©

-

Details of loan to a fellow subsidiary are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Details of the Company’s balances with related parties are set out in the balance sheet and
note 24 to the financial statements. '

The Company manages a combined non-linked investment portfolio on behalf of a
subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries, which are held by an investment custodian in the name

of the Company, as described in note 30.

During the year, the Company obtained key management personnel services from its

- fellow subsidiary, AXA China Region Insurance Company Limited. The key management

personnel received unapportioned remuneration of US$5,674,065 (2015: US$6,211,436).
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33. PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT PRESENTED UNDER THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE
HONG KONG INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
US$ US$

Insurance premium revenue

Transfer from/(to) revenue accounts |

- 1,989,111,367

1,883,953,100

Long term business 25,793,000 412,148,676
General business - 3,864,427 (4,040,794)
29,657,427 408,107,882
Income
Investment income
- listed 104,363 167,121
- unlisted , 95,300 478,005
Net realised and unrealised gains / _
(losses) on investments (102,089) 50,170
Other income (483,504) 13,015,585
| (385,930) 13,710,881
Expenses ‘ : ,
Loss on sale of investment in subsidiaries v - - (632,467)
Commission : - (1,864,392)
Investment expenses . (52,775) (64,897)
. Management and other expenses ’ (3,379,092) (12,045,921)
~ Profit before taxation 25,839,630 407,211,086
Tax credit /(expense) (675,914) 848,607
Profit for the year 25,163,716 408,059,693
* Dividends. : | . o o (25,793,000)  (343,183,136)

'Th'eb compérative balance inchides the profit and loss from ORSO and MPF business sold.

- 104 -



AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 :

34,

BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED UNDER THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE HONG KONG

INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

Adjustmehts under the Valuation Regulation -

Notes At31.122016  At31.12.2015
S USS$ US$
ASSETS '
~ INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 23,100 1,071,498
Adjustments under the Valuation Regulation 36 - (23,100) (1,066,880)
S | - 4,618
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 : 409,132 524,165
. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14 932,091,001 | 738,955,810
o TNVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 15 ‘ 53,953,211 51,524,766 |
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 16 10,542,629,023 9,348,872,275
LOANS | 17 212,631,479 219,733,662
| DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18 , - 2,878,569
OTHER ASSETS |
Direct premiums receivable R 24 - 180,335,472 134,907,547
Debtors and prepayments, unsecured 24 125,002,440 148,930,863
Reinsurance assets ’ 20,21 579,318,453 513,371,789
Amounts due from reinsurers and mtermed1ar1es :

- under reinsurance contracts ceded 24 606,506 607,066 -
Amounts due from an insurer subsidiary 24 133,060,270 115,735,701
Amount due from an immediate holding »

company o : 24 61,975,471 60,674,966
Amount due from an intermediate holdlng

company 24 310 310
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 24 8,386,298 4,670,373

- Derivative financial instruments 29 26,406,379 22,798,421
- Current tax assets - 191,022
. Deposits with banks , .
Fixed term 28 - 491,107,505 394,891,942
~ Current accounts » ‘ - 28 541,041,087 523,541,190
"~ Cash 28 - 4,447 4,450
| 2,147,244,638  1,920,325,640

2,147,244,638

1,920,325,640

TOTAL ASSETS 13,888,958,484

12,282,819,505
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

34,
~ INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE - continued

BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED UNDER THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE HONG KONG

CAPITAL SURPLUS AND LJABILITIES

~ CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital

Reserves : '
Adjustments under the Valuation Regulation

INSURANCE FUNDS

. Insurance liabilities
- Unassigned surplus

Adjustment under the Valuation Regulation

. RETIREMENT FUNDS

- DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

OTHER LIABILITIES
Creditors and accrued charges
Claims payable
Commissions payable
Policyholders' funds on deposit
Dividend payable

“ Amounts due to reinsurers and intermediaries

under reinsurance contracts ceded

Amounts due to non-insurer subsidiaries
. Amount due to an insurer subsidiary

Amount due to an intermediate holding
company

‘Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Derivative financial instruments
Current tax payables

B TOTAL CAPITAL SURPLUS AND LIABILITIES
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Notes

19
35

36

37

37
36

37

24
21
24
24
24

24
24
24

24
24
29

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

US$ US$
175,782,800 175782,800
521,428,695 522,057,979
(23.100) (1,066,880)
521,405,595 520,991,099
697188395 696,773,899
10,417,500.490  9,503.765.359
762433758 469.411.524

11,179,934,248

9,973,176,883

624,963 -
200,418,251 87,265,325
107,624,481 92,348,711
150,779,355 117,081,101
269,394,850 113,293,392

1,199,087,649  1,095,310,111

20,402,543 27,832,790
19 2,587,963
2,986,757 2,979,308
48,181,315 20,713,610
9,351,150 53,456,412
2,984,508 -

2,011,210,878

1,612,868,723

13,888,958.484

12,282,819,505




AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INF ORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 '

-~ 35.  RESERVES

Under HKICO basis

Share Retained profits and
premium  valuation adjustments Total
US$ - US$ US$
At 1 January 2015 | 383,257,000 73,924,422 457,181,422
~ Profit for the year S , - - 408,059,693 408,059,693
‘Dividends (note 11) : ‘ - (343,183,136) (343,183,136)
At 31 December 2015 : : 383,257,000 138,800,979 522,057,979
Profit for the year : - 25,163,716 25,163,716
Dividends (note 11) - (25,793,000) (25,793,000)
At 31 December 2016 - 383,257,000 138,171,695 521,428,695

36, ADIUS’IMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG INSURANCE COMPANIES (GENERAL
" ~ BUSINESS) (VALUATION) REGULATION ‘

Under HKICO basis

At31.12.2016  At31.12.2015
~US$ USS$

Investments in securities -
Adjustment under section 4 of the Valuation Regulation - -
Adjustment under section 8 of the Valuation Regulation - -
Adjustment under section 14 of the Valuation Regulation - , -

Other assets -
- Adjustment under section 14 of the Valuation Regulation - -

Insuranc'e.funds -
‘ Adjustment under section 10 of the Valuation Regulation . 23,100 | 1,066,880

23,100 1,066,880
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED -

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Under HKICO basis

Policy reserves, net

JIndividual life and annuity business
" Linked long term business .

. Group life business

"~ QGeneral insurance business
- Reinsurance assets

Insurance liabilities, gross

Unassigned surplus - :
Individual life and annuity business and
linked long term business
Retirement business management category I
Retirement business management category 11

Unassigned surplus
Adjustment under the Valuation Regulation

Insurance funds

‘Policy reserves

Retirement business managemen‘t category I
Retirement business management category 11

Retirement fﬁnd
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- INSURANCE LIABILITIES/FUNDS AND RETIREMENT FUND

At31.12.2016

At31.12.0015

US$ US$
~ 6,657,752,476 6,019,768,080
3,231,757,368  2,997,551,003
271 -
, 146,897 7,373,685
527,843,478 479,072,591
10,417,500,490  9,503,765,359
762,433,758 469,41 1 ,524
762,433,758 469,411,524

11,179,934,248

9,973,176,883
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

'40‘
L ©

(d)

©

- (®

€y

ADJUSTMENTS UNDER THE HONG KONG INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE -
contmued

Under HKICO, deposits collected and benefit payments of investment contracts without DPF are

‘accounted for through the statement of comprehensive income.

For products classified as investment contracts without DPF, HKAS 39 allowed origination costs to
be deferred (“DOC”) and reported as an intangible asset in the balance sheet. Under the HKICO, the
acquisition expenses are taken into account in accordance to section 15 of the HKICO Chapter 41E —
Insurance Companies (Determmatlon of Long Term Liabilities) Regulation, which sets out the
maximum annual premium to be valued not to be increased by an amount greater than 150% of the
annual premium. In 2011, having regard to the nature of the product, it is more relevant to not defer

* origination costs.

The adjustment refers to the deferred tax impact of the recognition of the DOC under HKICO basis.

In the case of certain assets and liabilities of the general insurance business, adjustments are made to

~ the value of the assets or liabilities to comply with the Hong Kong Insurance Companies (General

Business) (Valuation) Regulation (“the Valuation Regulation™).

Under the Valuation Regulation, fixed and variable interest investments held by the general and
shareholders' funds, which are included in the categories of financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss, are stated at 75% to 100% of the fair value at the balance sheet date. In addition,
certain limits are applied to the admissible assets in-accordance with the Valuation Regulation.
Adjustments to the valuation of the investments and other assets at the balance sheet date to

- comply w1th the Valuation Regulation are dealt with in reserves.

Under the Valuation Regulation, deferred acqu1s1t10n costs are not admissible. Adjustments to the
valuation of the insurance funds at the balance sheet date to exclude such deferred acquisition costs
in accordance with the Valuation Regulation are dealt with in reserves.

The adJustment represents the recognition of unassigned surplus as insurance 11ab111t1es under the
'HKICO basis.
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

LONG TERM BUSINESS (INCLUDING GROUP LIFE) BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED UNDER
THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE HONG KONG INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

- LONG TERM ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
Fixed interest debt investments
Government '
- listed
- unlisted
Others
- listed -
- unlisted
Floating interest debt investments
© =listed
- unlisted
Variable interest investments
Listed equity shares .
Unlisted unit trust investments
Private companies. = -
Private company debentures

LOANS
DEFERRED TAXATION ASSETS

OTHER ASSETS
- Direct premiums receivable
Debtors and prepayments, unsecured
Reinsurance assets ‘
Amounts due from reinsurers and intermediaries
under reinsurance contracts ceded
Amounts due from non-insurer subsidiaries
Current portion
Non-current portion
Amount due from an insurer subsidiary
Amount due from immediate holding company
Amount due from intermediate holding company
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Derivative financial instruments
Deposits with banks
- Fixed term
Current accounts
Cash

| TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

Us$ US$
- 4,618
409,132 524,165
932,091,001 738,955,810
53,953,211 51,524,766

1,446,399,125
717,818,156

4,862,206,577
306,364,293

12,324,062
94,907,124

783,033,330
2,658,031,412
281,929,748
6,079,390

1,041,013,938

488,546,245

3,943,497,384
327,155,422

431,110
94,964,679

578,625,267
2,558,780,784
-291,233,617
7,054,074

10,529,093,217

9,331,302,520

219,733,662

212,631,479
- 2,878,569
173,689,689 133,982,907
124,863,509 148,800,518
576,082,190 509,534,038
135,843,828 115,972,491
61,975,471 60,674,966
- 310 310
7,176,855 4,470,946
26,406,379 22,798,421
482,077,928 383,598,579
525,466,569 510,126,769
4,447 4,450
2,113,587,175 1,889,964,395
13,841,765,215 12,234,888,505
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AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

. LONG TERM BUSINESS (INCLUDING GROUP LIFE) BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED UNDER
THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE HONG KONG INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE -

continued

| LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

: CAPITAL AND RESERVE
Interfund ‘

INSURANCE FUNDS
Insurance liabilities, gross
Unassigned surplus

DEFERRED TAXATION LIABILITIES

OTHER LIABILITIES

Creditors and accrued charges

Claims payable ’

Commissions payable ,

Policyholders' funds on deposit

Dividend payable

Amounts due to reinsurers and intermediaries
under reinsurance contracts ceded

Amount due to non- insurer subsidiaries

Amount due to an insurer subsidiary

Amount due to intermediate holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Derivative financial instruments

Taxation

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

- USS$

693,669,695

US$

697,580,766

10,417,353,395
762,433,758

9,495,344,417
469,411,524

11,179,787,153

9,964,755,941

624,963

199,087,212 86,023,230
67,555,035 53,494,026
149,771,056 - 116,634,017
269,394,245 113,291,884
1,199,087,649  1,095,310,111
19,953,339 27,396,417
- 2,587,963
2,986,578 2,979,308
48,188,546 20,720,845
9,351,150 53,456,412
2,308,594 657,585,

1,967,683,404

1,572,551,798

13,841,765,215

12,234,888,505
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 AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- GENERAL BUSINESS (INCLUDING SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS) BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED
UNDER THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE HONG KONG INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

- GENERAL BUSINESS (INCLUDING SHAREHOLDERS'

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

_FUNDS) ASSETS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS |
Adjustment under section 10 of the Valuation Regulation

INVESTMENTS
 Fixed interest debt investments
Government '
- listed
‘- unlisted
Others
- listed

Adjustment under section 4 of the Valuation Regulation
Adjustment under section 8 of the Valuation Regulation

OTHER ASSETS
Direct premiums receivable
Debtors and prepayments, unsecured
-~ Reinsurance assets
~ Amounts due from reinsurers and intermediaries
under reinsurance contracts ceded
~Amounts due from immediate holding company
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Tax recoverable
Deposits with banks
Fixed term
Current accounts ;
» Ad_] ustment under section 14 of the Valuation Regulation

TOTAL GENERAL BUSINESS (INCLUDING
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS) ASSETS

-122 -

USS$ US$
23,100 11,066,880

(23,100)  (1,066,880)
13,535,806 17,569,755
13,535,806 17,569,755
13,535,806 17,569,755
6,645,783 924,640
138,931 130,345
3,236,263 3,837,751
606,506 607,066
1,216,674 206,662
- 848,607
9,029,577 11,293,363
15,574,518 13,414,421
36,448,252 31,262,855
48,832,610

49,984,058




AXA CHINA REGION INSURANCE COMPANY (BERMUDA) LIMITED

FINANCIAL INFORMATION PREPARED UNDER THE INSURANCE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

: GENERAL BUSINESS (INCLUDING SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS) BALANCE SHEET PRESENTED
UNDER THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE HONG KONG IN SURAN CE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

..~ continued

. GENERAL BUSINESS LIABILITIES AND
_SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capltal ‘

-Reserves

Interfund - :

,' Adjustments under sections 4,8,9,10 and 14
of the Valuation Regulation

INSURANCE FUNDS

Insurance liabilities, gross’

Adjustment under section 10 of the Valuation
Regulatlon

OTHER LIABILITIES

Creditors and accrued charges

Claims payable

Commissions payable
- Policyholders' funds on deposit

Dividend payable
 Amounts due to reinsurers and intermediaries
under reinsurance contracts ceded
~ Amounts due to non-insurer subsidiaries
. Amounts due to insurer subsidiaries
Amounts due to 1ntermed1ate holding company
Taxa’uon ‘

TOTAL GENERAL BUSINESS LIABILITIES
AND SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS |

At31.12.2016

At31.12.2015

US$ US$
175,782,800 175,782,800
521,428,695 522,057,979

(693,669,695)  (697,580,766)

(23,100) (1,066,880)

(172,264,100)  (176,589,667)
3,518,700 (806,867)
147,095 8,420,942
147,095 8,420,942
1,331,039 1,242,095
40,069,446 38,854,685
1,008,299 447,084
605 1,508
449,204 436,373
19 -
2,783,558 236,790
179 i
675,914 -

46,318,263 41,218,535
48,832,610

49,984,058
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